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To Our Shareholders

Fiscal year 2007 was a year of significant accomplishments for LTX.
We expanded our presence within current strategic customers and
developed new core customers by completing key engineering
development activities that are vital 1o driving capacity expansion.
We introduced a steady stream of differentiated X-Serias products
that extended our leadership in our target markets. And we
advanced our business madel by initiating the next phase of our
outsource manufacturing strategy. These accomplishments provide
a strong foundation for meaningfu! top line growth and profitability
when our industry enters its next growth phase.

Focused Customer Marketing

Throughout the year, we continued our strategy of concentrating
on specific market segments and customers where we can provide
differentiated technology and unequalled applications expertise.

As a result of this strategy, we broadened our presence within our
core customer base by leveraging the proven performance and cost
of test advantages of the X-Series. The scalability and compatitzility
af the X-Series enables customers to support a broader range of
products with a single test platform, thereby increasing their
overall operational efficiency. We also achieved critical wins at a
number of new customers in our target market areas. Here again,
by demonstrating our competitive advantages, we will look to
expand our presence within these new strategic accounts.

Scalable, Compatible Products

Qur focused customer marketing provides clear direction 1o the
product development path of our scalable, compatible X-Series
offering. Throughout the year, we released a consistent stream of
new instruments and computing enhancements that enabled us to
continuously, and cost-effectively, meet the advanced reguirements
of our customers’ next generation device technologies. Continuing
this trend, we made significant progress on a variety of additional
instruments that wilt be released over the coming year. These
developments will enable us to extend our advantage as the cost
of test and technology leader in the markets we serve.

Lean, Flexible Business Modetl

The LTX business model is one of the most efficient and cost-effective
in the industry, and we continued to make enhancements to it
througheout the year. The broad market acceptance of our X-Series

Key FYQ7 Achievements

* Expanded our presence with 5 of the top 10 SOC IDMs

¢ Delivered our 500th X-Series test system

* Released to preduction the latest X-Serigs configuration - the LX
* Launched feading edge instrumentation for RF and high

performance netweorking markets

test systems and the steady release of new instrumeants enabled
the newer, more cost-effective X-Series to become the dominant
product line for the company. We also initiated the next phase of
our outsource manufacturing strategy, beginning the transition of
the entire manufacturing precess offshore, with completion
pianned during the coming year. This move will further reduce our
industry leading cycle times while increasing our competitiveness
in the global marketplace.

These and many other activities enabled LTX to achieve financial
results that validated our business model. Even in the weak
husiness conditions, we performed better than in any previous
trough period and remained EBITDA cash positive for the year.
We reduced our theoretical break-even to $38 million per quarter,
$2 million better than our target of $40 million. And, we deliversd
this performance while preserving a steady workforce and
maintaining cur customer initiatives and new product development
activities. This is a far different LTX than in previous downturns,
and one that can deliver industry leading results as industry
conditions improve,

In Summary

Over the past year, LTX has taken meaningful steps to strategically
position the company for growth in the next cycle. We have developed
strategic accounts that should drive significant business for LTX as
their new products get released into volume production. We
continue 1o invest in new product development and applications
engineering to increase our competitive advantage in the markets
we serve. And we have built # balance sheet and business madel
that are core strengths of the company. In fiscal year 2008, our
focus will e on taking maximum advaniage of these strengths

to drive LTX's top line growth.

1w

David G. Tacelli
Chief Executive Officer and President

* Reduced debt outsianding by $100 million ‘.f'
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PART 1
Item 1. Business
Introduction

LTX Corporation, (“LTX"” or the “Company”), designs, manufactures, markets and services semiconductor
test solutions. Semiconductor designers and manufacturers worldwide, such as ASE, Infineon Technologies,
austriamicrosystems, Maxim Integrated Products, Renesas, STMicroelectronics and Texas Instruments, use
semiconductor test equipment to test devices at two different stages during the manufacturing process. These
devices are incorporated in a wide range of products, including mobile internet equipment such as wireless
access points and interfaces, broadband access products such as cable modems and DSL modems, personal
communication products such as cell phones and personal digital assistants, consumer products such as
televisions, videogame systems, digital cameras and automobile electronics, and for power management in
portable and automotive electronics. We provide test systems, global applications consulting, repair services and
operational support to over 100 customers in more than 15 countries. For additional information relating to
foreign revenues, refer to Note 8 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

We offer our customers the LTX Fusion® platform, which combines our enVision software with our
high-end Fusion HFi configuration or with our scalable Fusion X-Series (CX, DX, LX, EX, and MX)
configurations. Fusion was the first of a new class of test systems designed to test system-on-a-chip, or system in
package (“SIP™), devices in a single test step. With Fusion, we believe we have the leading test system capable of
testing a broad range of analog, digital, and mixed signal {(a combination of digital and analog) and SIP devices,
on a scalable, single platform.

LTX focuses its marketing and sales on integrated device manufacturers (IDMs), subcontractors, which
perform manufacturing services for the semiconductor industry, foundries, which provide wafer manufacturing
capability, and fabless companies, which design integrated circuits but have no manufacturing capability.

LTX Corporation was incorporated in Massachusetts in 1976. Our executive offices are located at 825
University Avenue, Norwood, Massachusetts 02062 and our telephone number is 781-461-1000. The terms
“LTX" and the “Company” refer to LTX Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries unless the context
otherwise specified. The Company makes its annual reports on Form 10-K, guarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports available, free of charge, in the Investor
Relations section of the Company's website at www.ltx.com as soon as reasonably practicable after such material
is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Comimission.




Industry Overview

The testing of devices is a critical step during the semiconductor production process. Typically,
semiconductor companies test each device at two different stages during the manufacturing process to ensure its
functional and electrical performance prior to shipment to the device user. These companies use semiconductor
testing equipment 1o first test a device after it has been fabricated but before it has been packaged to eliminate
non-functioning parts. Then, after the functioning devices are packaged, they are tested again to determine if they
fully meet performance specifications. Testing is an important step in the manufacturing process because it
allows devices to be fabricated at both maximum density and performance—a key to the competitiveness of

semiconductor manufacturers. Shown below is a schematic depiction of the major steps in the semiconductor
fabrication and test process.
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Three primary factors ultimately drive demand for semiconductor test equipment:

. increases in unit production of semiconductor devices;

increases in the complexity and performance level of devices used in electronic products; and

»  the emergence of next generation device technologies.

Increases in unit production result primarity from the proliferation of the personal computer, growth of the
telecommunications industry, consumer electronics, the mobile internet, broadband network access, the increased
use of digital signal processing (DSP) devices, and automotive and power management applications. These
increases in unit production, in turn lead to a corresponding increase in the need for test equipment,

Furthermore, demand is increasing worldwide for smaller, more highly integrated electronic products. This
has led to ever higher performance and more complex semiconductor devices, which, in turn, results in a
corresponding increase in the demand for equally sophisticated test equipment.

Finally, the introduction and adoption of a new generation of end-user products requires the development of
next generation device technologies. For example, access to information is migrating from the stand-alone
desktop computer, which might be physically linked to a local network, to the seamless, virtual network of the
internet, which is accessible from anywhere by a variety of new portable electronic communication products. A
critical enabling technology for this network and multimedia convergence is SIP. SIP provides the benefits of
lower cost, smaller size and higher performance by combining advanced digital, analog and embedded memory
technologies on a single device. Historically, these discrete technologies were only available on several separate
semiconductor devices, each performing a specific function. By integrating these functions in a single package,
SIP enables lower cost, smaller size, higher performance, and lower power consumption.




The increases in unit production of devices, the increase in complexity of those devices, and, ultimately, the
emergence of new semiconductor device technology have mandated changes in the design, architecture and
complexity of such test equipment. Semiconductor device manufacturers must still be able to test the increasing
volume and complexity of devices in a reliable, cost-effective, efficient and flexible manner. However, the
increased pace of technological change, together with the large capital investments required to achieve
economies of scale, are changing the nature and urgency of the challenges faced by device designers and
manufacturers.

Designers and manufacturers historically have not been able to use their test floors at peak efficiency
because they had to use several separate digital and mixed signal testers to perform all of their required testing.
This increases their costs of ownership due to increased training requirements, greater floor space, decreased
utilization and slower throughput. Furthermore, manufacturers cannot fully test new SIP designs because their
current testing equipment does not include a sufficiently broad range of mixed signal instrumentation.
Manufacturers are subject to further increased testing costs if their testing equipment lacks the flexibility and
capacity to run parallel tests on multiple devices at one time, or muiti-site testing. These problems are
exacerbated when volume production of devices increases.

Fusion X-Series, the LTX Solution

Our solution is the Fusion X-Series test platform. Fusion X-Series tests new generations of highly-integrated
mixed signal devices, advanced digital devices and SIP devices, which incorporate these technologies. The
testing requirements of digital and mixed signal devices are essentially a subset of the testing requirements of SIP
devices. The test requirements of all of these semiconductor devices are well within the range of Fusion’s
capability. The Fusion scalable test platform allows our customers to choose multiple hardware configurations
that share common instrumentation and software to test all of these devices, rather than the multiple incompatible
test systems typically required. By using a scalable testing platform, our customers are able to optimize their
asset utilization, thereby increasing their manufacturing flexibility and lowering the overall cost of their testing
processes.

Fusion X-Series is a differentiated solution to this test challenge because it provides all of the following:

A scalable test platform. Historically, device manufacturers used several narrowly focused testers to
test their devices, each designed to test only digital, only memory, or only mixed signal devices, leading to
productivity loss as device output mix changed. Our Fusion X-Series test platform combines our test
hardware with our enVison software to provide a flexible, scalable test environment. Fusion integrates the
testing of mixed signal, digital and embedded memory functions into a single scalable architecture to
provide better test performance and lower the cost of ownership for our customers by raising the utilization
rates of their test floors. Not only have our customers selected Fusion as part of their SIP strategy, but they
are also purchasing Fusion X-Series for capacity expansion on all their devices, eliminating the need for
separate digital and mixed signal testers,

Scalable performance. Semiconductor devices, depending upon their application, require different
levels of instrument performance for testing. For example, complex SIP devices require the advanced digital
testing performance, including embedded memory testing, found in traditional high-end VLSI testers,
whereas consumer-oriented digital and mixed signal devices typically have less stringent digital test
requirements. The Fusion scalable, X-Series platform offers different levels of test capability and tester
infrastructure support at different price points, providing our customers with the ability to match test
performance exactly to their needs.

Multi-site test capability. Multi-site testing, the parallel testing of more than one device {of the same
type) on one testing machine at a given time, lowers the overall cost of testing devices by increasing the
throughput of each testing machine, We designed Fusion to make multi-site testing easier for the test
designer. Earlier generations of testing equipment required test engineers to spend significant amounts of
time writing specific software programs to run tests in parallel. Our enVision software allows test engineers
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to expand single-site testing programs into multi-site testing programs with ease. Fusion’s hardware can be
configured with a sufficient number of instruments to perform multi-site testing even on highly complex SIP
devices. These features allow our customers to take advantage of the increased throughput offered by multi-
site testing without sacrificing their ability to introduce new products to market quickly.

A full range of mixed signal instrumentation. Testing different types of SIP input/output interfaces
requires radio frequency (RF), digital signal processing (DSP), power management, lime measurement, and
other instruments. Fusion provides customers with the broad range of mixed signal instrumentation
necessary to test these devices to the customer’s desired specifications. Mixed signal test expertise is in
short supply in the industry and one of our strengths in SIP testing is the depth of our mixed signal
intellectual property, based on our heritage as a pioneer in this field.

Easy-to-use software for test program development. Our enVision software provides the customer’s
test engineer with an expandable library of prepackaged, reusable test program modules and debugging
tools, all accessible through an easy-to-use graphical user interface. In most other testers, test engineers can
reuse test code only by cutting and pasting lines of program code. enVision encapsulates test techniques into
software objects that are added to the library for reuse in subsequent test programs. The test engineer can
use these software objects when designing new test programs simply by dragging them with a mouse into
the program flow. The ease-of-use of our software accelerates our customers’ development process, which
allows them to introduce their semiconductor devices to market more rapidly.

The LTX Business Strategy

LTX’s objective is to be the leading supplier of semiconductor test equipment. Key elements of our sirategy
include:

Extend our technological lead in scalable platform testing. We believe that a scalable, common
architecture test platform solution offers our customers the greatest flexibility in managing the utilization of
their test assets, thereby decreasing the cost of test. We intend to continue to focus our resources on a
scalable, single integrated hardware and software test platform solution by developing options and
configurations that will extend Fusion’s reach to address cost-effectively the testing of semiconductor
devices across a wider spectrum of performance and complexity. Rather than diluting our resources with a
multiple platform strategy, we believe our resources will provide a higher return on investment by focusing
on a scalable, single test platform for advanced digital, mixed signal, and SIP devices.

Concentrate our sales, applications consulting, and service efforts on key accounts. We recognize
that large, diversified semiconducior device manufacturers, commonly referred to as IDMs, large offshore
test and assembly companies and certain fabless semiconductor device designers purchase most of the
world’s test equipment, and that the level of support we are able to provide to them has a direct impact on
future business. We believe that focusing our sales and support resources on these key semiconductor
companies is the most efficient way to maximize revenue. Therefore, we have organized our selling, field
service, and field applications organizations around these key companies, and located these resources close
to their facilities. This has helped us to increase our responsiveness to customers’ needs and develop
collaborative relationships that help guide us in developing future applications and system options.

Further improve the flexibility of our business model. In order to focus our resources on the
development of Fusion X-Series, improve our responsiveness to customer needs, reduce fixed costs and
working capital requirements, and manage the cyclicality of our industry more effectively, we have
implemented a more flexible business model. The cornerstone of this business model is our manufacturing
outsourced medel. Substantially all of our manufacturing functions have been outsourced to third parties
with Jabil being our primary outsource vendor. We augment our focused internal development resources
through our Open Platform Program, which was designed to facilitate third party development of
instrumentation for our Fusion X-Series platform using supported hardware and software interfaces to our
Fusion hardware and enVision operating system. We engage contract employees to address periods of peak

. demand. Through our strategic alliances, we have implemented additional international distribution and

4




have outsourced certain repair and support functions. We intend to continue to identify and implement
programs which enhance our ability to meet customers’ needs while reducing fixed costs.

Fusion X-Series Overview

Fusion offers a unique solution for testing the full spectrum of non-memory devices, consisting of SIP,
mixed signal, and digital devices. The Fusion test platform provides customers with highly reliable test
performance and cost-efficiency in their efforts to accelerate their time-to-market for SIP, mixed signal, and
digital devices. The Fusion test platform combines our test station hardware with our enVision software and is
available in Fusion HFi, Pusion CX, Fusion DX, Fusion LX, Fusion EX and Fusion MX configurations. These
cenfigurations depend primarily on the digital complexity of the device to be tested.

enVision

Our enVision software helps customers design device test programs faster and more efficiently by
providing a customer’s test engineer with an expandable library of prepackaged, reusable test program
modules and debugging tools, all accessible through an easy-to-use graphical user interface. In other testers,
test engineers can reuse test code only by cutting and pasting lines of program code. enVision software
circumvents much of this laborious process by encapsulating test techniques into software objects that are
added to the library for reuse in subsequent test programs. The test engineer can use these software objects
when designing new test programs simply by inserting them into the program flow,

Fusion HFi

Our Fusion HFi is one of the most advanced testers available. The Fusion HFi and HF (the predecessor
to the HFi) feature up to 1,024 digital pins together with advanced mixed signal technology. This range of
instrumentation on a single platform allows semiconductor manufacturers to optimize their asset utilization,
thereby increasing their manufacturing flexibility and lowering the overall cost of their testing processes.
Fusion’s modular, open architecture has been designed so that it can keep pace with today's rapid changes
in test technology. As new generations of devices require more advanced test capabilities, customers can
easily upgrade their Fusion testers to accommodate these requirements,

Fusion X-Series : CX, DX, LX, EX and MX

The X-series is the Company’s latest product offering extending the common architecture of the HFi to
a scalable infrastructure concept that preserves the enVision common operating system while providing a
new generation of air cooled digital instrament options.

Fusion CX is a high-performance, lower cost Fusion system targeted primarily towards the testing of
high-volume mixed signal devices. The mixed signal device technologies tested by Fusion CX are often the
precursor to mixed signal technologies that will be incorporated into next generation SIP designs. Fusion
CX features up to 128 digital pins, mixed signal and RF test instruments, and power management test
technology. Typical device types tested on Fusion CX include radio frequency/wireless such as 802.11,
power management and automotive devices.

Fusion DX extends the reach of Fusion to the desktop, offering complete ATE capabilities and the
flexibility to be deployed at any point from design to production. Fusion DX can be integrated into other
production equipment, including test systems, probers or handlers without use of additional floor space, and
offers a wide range of capabilities, including full-featured digital and a broad line of mixed signal
instruments.

Fusion LX extends the reach of Fusion to the engineering lab, offering complete ATE capabilities and
the flexibility to be deployed at any point from design to production, Fusion LX can be used for device
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characterization of complex mixed signal devices or deployed in production o test less complex devices
multi-site. The LX offers all the instrumentation available in other X-Series configurations with the
exception of RF.

Fusion EX offers four times the instrument channels as Fusion CX, enabling a wider range of system
configurations. Fusion EX uses the same instruments available in other X-Series configurations to address
the testing needs of advanced consumer digital, baseband communications and SIP devices. The EX can be
configured with up to 512 digital pins and the complete suite of X-Series mixed signal instruments to
produce system configurations with a more efficient cost of ownership than competitive platforms.

Fusion MX is a mid range offering that can accommodate twice the number of instruments as the Fusion
CX and is targeted at applications in the automotive, power management, wireless RF and consumer baseband
area. The MX can be configured with up to 256 digital pins and uses the same instruments available in other
X-Series configurations. In addition to the instrument compatibility the MX can also run the exact same test
programs developed on the other X-Series configurations because they all run the same enVision operating
system.

Service

Qur worldwide service organization is capable of performing installations and all necessary maintenance of
test systems sold by us, including routine servicing of components manufactured by third parties. We provide
various parts and labor warranties on test systems or options designed and manufactured by us, and warranties on
components that have been purchased from other manufacturers and incorporated into our test systems. We also
provide training on the maintenance and operation of test systems we sell. Service revenue totaled $29.3 million,
or 19.9% of net sales, in fiscal 2007, $33.2 million, or 15.3% of net sales, in fiscal 2006, and $31.5 million, or
23.4% of net sales, in fiscal 2005,

We offer a wide range of service contracts, which gives our customers the flexibility to select the
maintenance program best suited to their needs. Customers may purchase service contracts which extend
maintenance beyond the initial warranty provided. Many customers enter into annual or multiple-year service
contracts over the life of the equipment. The pricing of contracts is based upon the level of service provided to
the customer and the time period of the service contract. We belicve that service revenues should be less affected
by the cyclical nature of the semiconductor indusiry than sales of test equipment. We maintain service centers
around the world, both directly and through strategic alliances with companies that are located in Singapore,
Japan, Korea, Philippines, Thailand and California.

Engineering and Product Development

The test equipment market is characterized by rapid technological change and new product introductions, as
well as advancing industry standards. Our competitive position will depend upon our ability to successfully
enhance the Fusion X-Series platform and develop new instrumentation, and to introduce these new products on
a timely and cost-effective basis. We devote a significant portion of personnel and financial resources to the
continued development of our scalable, test platform capabilities, including embedded memory, digital and
mixed signal core competencies. We also seek to maintain close relationships with our customers in order to be
responsive to their product development and production needs. Qur expenditures for engineering and product
development were $50.0 million, $53.8 million, and $66.3 million, during fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

Our engineering strategy is to focus on development of the Fusion X-Series scalable, test platform. We
believe that our scalable-platform strategy is a more cost effective method of focusing research and design
efforts, because we are able to avoid dilution of our development efforts across multiple product platforms. We
also intend to develop our future test systems in an evolutionary manner so that they may be progressively
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upgraded. Together with our strategic alliances, this approach preserves our customers’ substantial investments
in our pre-existing test systems and programs, and, in general, helps us maintain market acceptance for our test
systems. We work closely with our customers to define new product features and to identify emerging
applications for our products.

Sales and Distribution

We sell our products primarily through a worldwide direct sales organization. Qur sales organization is
structured around key accounts, with a sales force of 22 people. We use a small number of independent sales
representatives and distributors in certain regions of the world.

Our sales to customers outside the United States are primarily denominated in United States dollars. Sales
outside North America were 67%, 39%, and 69%, of total net sales in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
See Note 8 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information relating to foreign
revenues.

Customers

Our customers include many of the world’s leading semiconductor device manufacturers. In fiscal years
2007, 2006 and 2005, Texas Instruments accounted for 38%, 56%, and 47% of net sales, respectively, A
representative list of customers that have ordered Fusion products includes the following:

Amkor Maxim Integrated Products Silicon Image
austriamicrosystems Melexis Silicon Laboratories
ASAT National Semiconductor SMSC

ASE Nordic Semiconductor STATS Chipac

Delphi Philips Semiconductor (NXP) STMicroelectronics
Freescale Qlogic Texas Instruments
Giga Solutions RFMD UTAC

Infineon Technologies Renesas Vitesse Semiconductor
KYEC Samsung

Because a relatively small number of semiconductor companies purchase most of the world’s
semiconductor test equipment and we have concentrated our sales and support efforts on such key customers, we
believe that sales to a limited number of customers will continue to account for a high percentage of net sales for
the foreseeable future.

Manufacturing and Supply

We outsource our final assembly, system integration, and testing operations of our Fusion HFi, CX, DX,
LX, EX and MX, to Jabil Circuit. We outsource certain components and subassemblies to other contract
manufacturers as well. We use standard components and prefabricated parts manufactured to our specifications.
These components and subassemblies are used to produce testers in configurations specified by our customers.
Some of the components for our products are available from a number of different suppliers; however, many
components are purchased from a single supplier or a limited group of suppliers. Although we believe that ali
single source components currently are available in adequate amounts, we cannot be certain that shortages will
not develop in the future. We are dependent on a semiconductor device manufacturer, Maxtek Components, who
is a sole source supplier of custom compenents for our products. We have no written supply agreements with this
sole source supplier and purchase our custom components through individual purchase orders, We continuously
evaluate sources for our custom components, We cannot assure you that such aliernative sources will be qualified
or available to us.

Recently, we announced plans to transition manufacturing of all X-Series products to Jabil's Penang,
Malyasta facility from the current location in Billerica, Massachusetts. The move is intended to realize
efficiencies by bringing manufacturing operations to a location closer to many customers’ facilities and to a
lower cost manufacturing environment,




Qur facilities in Norwood, Massachusetts and San Jose, California perform research and development
activities, which include assembly, system integration and testing for prototypes.

Competition

Many other domestic and foreign companies participate in the markets for each of our products and the
industry is highly competitive. We compete principally on the basis of performance, cost of test, reliability,
customer service, applications support, price and ability to deliver our products on a timely basis. Our
competitors in the market for test systems include Advantest, Credence Systems, Eagle Test Systems, Teradyne
and Verigy. Certain of these companies have a substantially larger share of our addressable market than we do
and the majority of our major competitors have greater financial and other resources than we do. A majority of
these competitors have a larger installed base of equipment than we do. All of our major competitors are
suppliers of other types of automatic test equipment and also supply products to other markets. We expect our
competitors to enhance their current products and they could introduce new products with comparable or better
price and performance. In addition, new competitors, including semiconductor manufacturers themselves, may
offer new technologies, which may in turn reduce the value of our product lines.

Backlog

At July 31, 2007, our backlog of unfilled orders for all products and services was $29.4 million, compared
with $72.8 million at July 31, 2006. Historically, test systems generally ship within twelve months of receipt of a
customer’s purchase order. While backlog is calculated on the basis of firm orders, orders may be subject to
cancellation or delay by the customer with limited or no penalty. Our backlog at any particular date, therefore, is
not necessarily indicative of actual sales which may be generated for any succeeding period. Historically, our
backlog levels have fluctuated based upon the ordering patterns of our customers and changes in our
manufacturing capacity.

Proprietary Rights

The development of our products is largely based on proprietary information. We rely upon a combination
of contract provisions, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws to protect our proprietary rights in products.
We also have a policy of seeking U.S. patents on technology considered of particular strategic importance. The
earliest expiration date of any of our patents is March 2, 2010. Our other patents have later expiration dates and
relate to various technologies, including technology relating to the Fusion system and pin electronics. Although
we believe that the copyrights, trademarks and patents we own are of value, we believe that they will not
determine our success, which depends principally upon our engineering, applications, manufacturing, marketing
and service skills. However, we intend to protect our rights when, in our view, these rights are infringed upon.

The use of patents to protect hardware and software has increased in the test equipment industry. We have at
times been notified of claims that we may be infringing patents issued to others. Although there are no pending
actions against us regarding any patents, no assurance can be given that infringement claims by third parties will
not negatively impact our business and results of operations. As to any claims asserted against us, we may seek
or be required to obtain a license under the third party’s intellectual property rights. There can be no assurance,
however, that a license will be available under reasonable terms or at all. In addition, we could decide to engage
in litigation to challenge such claims or a third party could engage in litigation to enforce such claims. Such
litigation could be expensive and time consuming and could negatively impact our business and results of
operations.

Employees

At July 31, 2007, we employed 436 employees and 18 temporary workers. None of our employees are
represented by a labor union, and we have experienced no work stoppages. Many of our employees are highly
skilled, and we believe our future success will depend in large part on our ability to attract and retain these
employees. We consider relations with our employees to be good.
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Environmental Affairs

Cur manufacturing facilities are subject to numerous laws and regulations designed to protect the
environment. We do not anticipate that compliance with these laws and regulations will have a material effect on
our capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report includes or incorporates forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and
uncertainties and fall within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, You can identify these forward-looking staternents by our use of the words
“believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “would,” “intends,” “estimates,” and similar
expressions, whether in the negative or affirmative. We cannot guarantee that we actually will achieve these
plans, intentions or expeclations. Actual results or events could differ materially from the plans, intentions and
expectations disclosed in the forward-looking statements we make. We have included important factors in the
cautionary statements, particularly under the heading “Business Risks,” that we believe could cause our actual
results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements that we make. We do not assume any obligation

to update any forward-looking statement we make.

LAY LAY LI LI LEITY

Our sole market is the highly cyclical semiconductor industry, which causes a cyclical impact on our
Jinancial results.

We sell capital equipment to companies that design, manufacture, assemble, and test semiconductor devices.
The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical, causing in turn a cyclical impact on our financial results. In fiscal
2006, the industry entered a growth period that was reflected in our improving operating results during fiscal
2006. However, our incoming product orders in the fourth quarter decreased from the third quarter’s levels and
continued to decrease in the first two quarters of fiscal 2007. The timing and level of industry recovery is
uncertain at this time as we enter our fiscal 2008. Any failure to expand in cycle upturns to meet customer
demand and delivery requirements or contract in cycle downturns at a pace consistent with cycles in the industry
could have an adverse effect on our business.

Any significant downturn in the markets for our customers’ semiconductor devices or in general economic
conditions would likely result in a reduction in demand for our products and would hurt our business. From the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 through the end of fiscal 2007, our revenue and operating results were negatively
impacted by a downturn in the semiconductor industry. Downturns in the semiconductor test equipment industry
have been characterized by diminished product demand, excess production capacity, accelerated erosion of
selling prices and excessive inventory levels. We believe the markets for newer generations of devices, including
systern in package (“SIP”), will also experience similar characteristics. Our market is also characterized by rapid
technological change and changes in customer demand. In the past, we have experienced delays in commitments,
delays in collecting accounts receivable and significant declines in demand for our products during these
downturns, and we cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain or exceed our current level of sales.

Additionally, as a capital equipment provider, our revenue is driven by the capital expenditure budgets and
spending patterns of our customers who often delay or accelerate purchases in reaction to variations in their
businesses. Because a high portion of our costs are fixed, we are limited in our ability to reduce expenses and
inventory purchases quickly in response to decreases in orders and revenues, In a contraction, we may not be able
to reduce our significant fixed costs, such as continued investment in research and development and capital
equipment requirements and materials purchases from our suppliers.

The market for semiconductor fest equipment is highly concentrated, and we have limited opportunities to
sell our products.

The semiconductor industry is highly concentrated, and a small number of semiconductor device
manufacturers and contract assemblers account for a substantial portion of the purchases of semiconductor test
equipment generally, including our test equipment. Sales to Texas Instruments accounted for 38% of our net
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sales in fiscal 2007 and 56% of our net sales in fiscal 2006. Sales to our ten largest customers accounted for
79.4% of revenues in fiscal year 2007 and 82.1% in fiscal year 2006. Our customers may cancel orders with few
or no penalties. If a major customer reduces orders for any reason, our revenues, operating results, and financial
condition will be affected.

Our ability to increase our sales will depend in part upon our ability to obtain orders from new customers.
Semiconductor manufacturers select a particular vendor’s test system for testing the manufacturer’s new
generations of devices and make substantial investments to develop related test program software and interfaces.
Once a manufacturer has selected one test system vendor for a generation of devices, that manufacturer is more
likely to purchase test systems from that vendor for that generation of devices, and, possibly, subsequent
generations of devices as well. Therefore, the opportunities to obtain orders from new customers may be limited.

Our sales and operating results have fluctuated significantly from period to period, including from one
quarter to another, and they may continue to do so.

Our quarterly and annual operating results are affected by a wide variety of factors that could adversely
affect sales or profitability or lead to significant variability in our operating results or our stock price. This may
be caused by a combination of factors, including the following:

»  sales of a limited number of test systems account for a substantial portion of our net sales in any
particular fiscal quarter, and a small number of transactions could therefore have a significant impact;

»  order cancellations by customers;
»  lower gross margins in any particular period due to changes in:
*  our product mix,
. the configurations of test systems sold,
+  the customers to whom we sell these systems, or
¢ volume.

«  along sales cycle, due to the high selling price of our test systems, the significant investment made by
our customers, and the time required to incorporate our systems into our customers’ design or
manufacturing process; and

+  changes in the timing of product orders due to:

»  unexpected delays in the introduction of products by our customers,

shorter than expected lifecycles of our customers’ semiconductor devices,
»  uncertain market acceptance of products developed by our customers, or

»  our own research and development.

We cannot predict the impact of these and other factors on our sales and operating results in any future
period. Results of operations in any period, therefore, should not be considered indicative of the results to be
expected for any future period. Because of this difficulty in predicting future performance, our operating results
may fall below expectations of securities analysts or investors in some future quarter or quarters. Qur failure to
meet these expectations would likely adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

A substantial amount of the shipments of our test systems for a particular quarter occur late in the quarter.
Our shipment pattern exposes us to significant risks in the event of problems during the complex process of final
integration, test and acceptance prior to shipment. If we were to experience problems of this type late in our
quarter, shipments could be delayed and our operating results could fall below expectations.
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We depend on Jabil Circuit to produce and test our family of Fusion products, and any failures or other
problems at or with Jabil could cause us to lose customers and revenues.

We have selected Jabil Circuit, Inc. to manufacture our Fusion test systems. If for any reason Jabil cannot
provide us with these products and services in a timely fashion, or at all, whether due to labor shortage, slow
down or stoppage, deteriorating financial or business conditions or any other reason, we would not be able to sell
or ship our Fusion family of products to our customers. All of the products Jabil tests and assembles for us are
assembled in one facility in Massachusetts. H this facility were to become unable to meet our production
requirements, transitioning assembly to an alternative Jabil facility could result it production delays of several
weeks or more. We have recently announced plans to transition manufacturing of alt X-Series products from the
facility in Massachusetts to Jabil’s Penang, Malyasia facility. If the transition to Jabil’s Malyasia facility is not
successfully completed, or if Jabil Malaysia is unable to meet our production requirements, there would be
production delays and we would not be able to ship products to our customers. We have no written supply
agreement with Jabil. We also may be unable to engage alternative production and testing services on a timely
basis or upon terms favorable to us, if at all.

We also may be unable to engage alternative production and testing services on a timely basis or upon terms
favorable to us, if at all. If we are required for any reason to seek a new manufacturer of our test systems, an
alternate manufacturer may not be available and, in any event, transitioning to a new manufacturer would require
a significant lead time of six months or more and would involve substantial expense and disruption of our
business. Our test systems are highly sophisticated and complex capital equipment, with many custom
components, and require specific technical know-how and expertise. These factors could make it more difficult
for us to find a new manufacturer of our test systems if our relationship with Jabil is terminated for any reason,
which would cause us to lose revenues and customers.

Our dependence on subcontractors and sole source suppliers may prevent us from delivering an acceptable
product on a timely basis.

We rely on subcontractors to manufacture Fusion and many of the components and subassemblies for our
products, and we rely on sole source suppliers for certain components. We may be required to qualify new or
additional subcontractors and suppliers due to capacity constraints, competitive or quality concerns or other risks
that may arise, including a result of a change in control of, or deterioration in the financial condition of, a
supplier or subcontractor. The process of qualifying subcontractors and suppliers is a lengthy process. Our
reliance on subcontractors gives us less control over the manufacturing process and exposes us to significant
risks, especially inadequate capacity, late delivery, substandard quality, and high costs. In addition, the
manufacture of certain of these components and subassemblies is an extremely complex process. If a supplier
became unable to provide parts in the volumes needed or at an acceptable price, we would have to identify and
qualify acceptable replacements from alternative sources of supply, or manufacture such components internally.
The failure to qualify acceptable replacements quickly would delay the manufacturing & delivery of our
products, which could cause us to lose revenues and customers.

We are dependent on a semiconductor device manufacturer, Maxtek Components as a sole source supplier of
components manufactured in accordance with our proprietary design and specifications. We have no written supply
agreement with this sole source supplier and purchase our custom components through individual purchase orders.

Compliance with current and future environmental regulations may be costly and disruptive to our
operations. '

We may be subject to environmentat and other regulations due to our production and marketing of products in
certain states and countries. We are in the process of planning for and evaluating the impact of a directive to reduce
the amount of hazardous materials in certain electronic components such as printed circuit boards. The directive is
known as Directive 2002/95/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 January 2003 on the
restriction of the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment. “RoHS” is short for
restriction of hazardous substances. The RoHS Directive banned the placing on the EU market of new electrical and
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electronic equipment containing more than agreed levels of lead, cadmium, mercury, hexavalent chromium,
polybrominated biphenyl (PBB) and polybrominated diphenyl ether (PBDE), except where exemptions apply, from
1 July 2006. Manufacturers are required to ensure that their products, including their constituent materials and
components, do not contain more than the minimum levels of the six restricted materials in order to be allowed to
export goods into the Single Market (i.e. of the European Community’s 25 Member States). We are uncertain as to
the impact of compliance on future expenses and supply of materials used to manufacture our equipment. Any
interruption in supply due to the unavailability of lead free products could have a significant impact on the
manufacturing and delivery of our products. If a supplier became unable to provide parts in the volumes needed or
at an acceptable price, we would have to identify and qualify acceptable replacements from alternative sources of
supply or manufacture such components internally. The failure to qualify acceptable replacements quickly would
delay the manufacturing and delivery of our products, which could cause us to lose revenues and customers.

Future acquisitions may be difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder value or divert
management attention.

We have in the past, and may in the future, seek to acquire or invest in additional complementary
businesses, products, technologies or engineers. For example, in June 2003, we completed our acquisition of
StepTech, Inc. We may have to issue debt or equity securities to pay for future acquisitions, which could be
dilutive to then current stockholders. We have also incurred and may continue to incur certain liabilities or other
expenses in connection with acquisitions, which could continue to materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Mergers and acquisitions of high-technology companies are inherently risky, and no assurance can be given
that future acquisitions will be successful and will not materially adversely affect our business, operating results
or financial condition. Our past and future acquisitions may involve many risks, including:

«  difficulties in managing our growth following acquisitions;

+ difficulties in the integration of the acquired personnel, operations, technologies, products and systems
of the acquired companies;

«  uncertainties concerning the intellectual property rights we purport to acquire;

+  unanticipated costs or liabilities associated with the acquisitions;

¢ diversion of managements’ attention from other business concerns;

- adverse effects on our existing business relationships with our or our acquired companies’ customers;

»  potential difficulties in completing projects associated with purchased in process research and
development; and

. inability to retain employees of acquired companies.
Y ploy q p

Any of the events described in the foregoing paragraphs could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations and could cause the price of our common stock to decline.

We may not be able to deliver custom hardware options and software applications to satisfy specific
customer needs in a timely manner.

We must develop and deliver customized hardware and software to meet our customers’ specific test
requirements. Our test equipment may fail to meet our customers’ technical or cost requirements and may be
replaced by competitive equipment or an alternative technology solution. Our inability to provide a test system
that meets requested performance criteria when required by a device manufacturer would severely damage our
reputation with that customer. This loss of reputation may make it substantially more difficult for us to sell test
systems to that manufacturer for a number of years. We have, in the past, experienced delays in introducing some
of our products and enhancements.
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Our dependence on international sales and non-U.S. suppliers invelves significant risk.

Internaticnal sales have constituted a significant portion of our revenues in recent years, and we expect that this
composition will continue. International sales accounted for 67% of our revenues for fiscal year 2007 and 59% of our
revenues for fiscal year 2006. In addition, we rely on non-U.S. suppliers for several components of the equipment we
sell. As a result, a major part of our revenues and the ability to manufacture our products are subject to the risks
associated with international commerce. A reduction in revenues or a disruption or increase in the cost of our
manufacturing materials could hurt our operating results. These intemational relationships make us particularly
sensitive to changes in the countries frem which we derive sales and obtain supplies. Qur recently announced plans to
transition our outsource manufacturing to Penang, Malaysia increases our exposure 1o these types of intemational
risks. International sales and our relationships with suppliers may be hurt by many factors, including:

*  changes in law or policy resulting in burdensome government controls, tariffs, restrictions, embargoes
or export license requirements;

«  political and economic instability in our target international markets;
*  longer payment cycles common in foreign markets;
«  difficulties of staffing and managing our international operations;

*  less favorable foreign intellectual property laws making it harder to protect our technology from
appropriation by competitors; and

e difficulties collecting our accounts receivable because of the distance and different legal rules.

In the past, we have incurred expenses to meet new regulatory requirements in Europe, experienced periodic
difficulties in obtaining timely payment from non-U.S. customers, and been affected by economic conditions in
several Asian countries. Our foreign sales are typically invoiced and collected in U.S. dollars. A strengthening in
the dollar relative to the currencies of those countries where we do business would increase the prices of our
products as stated in those currencies and could hurt our sales in those countries. Significant fluctuations in the
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and foreign currencies could cause us to lower our prices and thus reduce
our profitability. These fluctuations could also cause prospective customers to push out or delay orders because
of the increased relative cost of our products. In the past, there have been significant fluctuations in the exchange
rates between the dollar and the currencies of countries in which we do business. While we have not entered into
significant foreign currency hedging arrangements, we may do so in the future. if we do enter into foreign
currency hedging arrangements, they may not be effective.

Qur market is highly competitive, and we have limited resources to compete.

The test equipment industry is highly competitive in all areas of the world. Many other domestic and foreign
companies participate in the markets for each of our products, and the industry is highly competitive. Qur
competitors in the market for semiconductor test equipment include Advantest, Credence Systems, Eagle Test
Systems, Teradyne and Verigy. Certain of these major competitors have substantially greater financial resources
and more extensive engineering, manufacturing, marketing, and customer support capabilities.

We expect our competitors to enhance their current products and to introduce new products with comparable
or better price and performance, The introduction of competing products could hurt sales of our current and
future products. In addition, new competitors, including semiconductor manufacturers themselves, may offer new
testing technologies, which may in turn reduce the value of our product lines. Increased competition could lead to
intensified price-based competition, which would hurt our business and results of operations. Unless we are able
to invest significant financial resources in developing products and maintaining customer support centers
worldwide, we may not be able to compete effectively.

Development of our products requires significant lead-time, and we may fail to correctly anticipate the
technical needs of our customers.

Our customers make decisions regarding purchases of our test equipment while their devices are still in
development. Qur test systems are used by our customers to develop, test and manufacture their new devices. We
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therefore must anticipate industry trends and develop products in advance of the commercialization of our
customers’ devices, requiring us to make significant capital investments to develop new test equipment for our
customers well before their devices are introduced. If our customers fail to introduce their devices in a timely
manner or the market does not accept their devices, we may not recover our capital investment through sales in
significant volume. In addition, even if we are able to successfully develop enhancements or new generations of
our products, these enhancements or new generations of products may not generate revenue in excess of the costs
of development, and they may be quickly rendered obsolete by changing customer preferences or the
introduction of products embodying new technologies or features by our competitors. Furthermore, if we were to
make announcements of product delays, or if our competitors were to make announcements of new test systems,
these announcements could cause our customers to defer or forego purchases of our existing test systems, which
would also hurt our business.

Our success depends on attracting and retaining key personnel.

Our success will depend substantially upon the continued service of our executive officers and key
personnel, none of whom are bound by an employment or non-competition agreement. Our success will depend
on our ability to attract and retain highly qualified managers and technical, engineering, marketing, sales and
support personnel. Competition for such specialized personnel is intense, and it may become more difficult for us
to hire or retain them. Our volatile business cycles only aggravate this problem. Layoffs in any industry
downturn could make it more difficult for us to hire or retain qualified personnel. Our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected by the loss of any of our key
employees, by the faiture of any key employee to perform in his or her current positions, or by our inability to
attract and retain skilled employees.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights.

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain intellectual property rights and licenses and to preserve
other intellectual property rights covering our products and development and testing tools. To that end, we have
obtained certain domestic patents and may continue to seek patents on our inventions when appropriate. We have
also obtained certain trademark registrations. To date, we have not sought patent protection in any countries other
than the United States, which may impair our ability to protect our intellectual property in foreign jurisdictions.
The process of seeking intellectual property protection can be time consuming and expensive. We cannot ensure
that:

o  patents will issue from currently pending or future applications;

*  our existing patents or any new patents will be sufficient in scope or strength to provide meaningful
protection or any commercial advantage to us;

* foreign inteflectual property laws will protect our intellectual property rights; or

«  others will not independently develop similar products, duplicate our products or design around our
technology.

If we do not successfully enforce our intellectual property rights, our competitive position could suffer,
which could harm our operating results, We also rely on trade secrets, proprietary know-how and confidentiality
provisions in agreements with employees and consultants to protect our intellectual property. Other parties may
not comply with the terms of their agreements with us, and we may not be able to adequately enforce our rights
against these people.

Third parties may claim we are infringing their intellectual property, and we could suffer significant
litigation costs, licensing expenses or be prevented from selling our products.

Intellectual property rights are uncertain and involve complex legal and factual questions. We may be
unknowingly infringing on the intellectual property rights of others and may be liable for that infringement,
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which could result in significant liability for us. If we do infringe the intellectual property rights of others, we
could be forced to either seek a license to intellectual property rights of others or alter our products so that they
no longer infringe the intellectual property rights of others. A license could be very expensive to obtain or may
not be available at all. Similarly, changing our products or processes to avoid infringing the rights of others may
be costly or impractical.

We are responsible for any patent litigation costs. If we were to become involved in a dispute regarding
intellectual property, whether ours or that of another company, we may have to participate in legal proceedings.
These types of proceedings may be costly and time consuming for us, even if we eventually prevail. If we do not
prevail, we might be forced to pay significant damages, obtain licenses, modify our products or processes, stop
making products or stop using processes.

QOur stock price is volatile.

In the twelve-month period ending on July 31, 2007, our stock price ranged from a low of $4.45 to a high of
$6.72. The price of our common stock has been and likely will continue to be subject to wide fluctuations in
response to a number of events and factors, such as:

*  quarterly variations in operating results;

*  variances of our quarterly results of operations from securities analyst estimates;

*  changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts;

» announcements of technological innovations, new products, or strategic alliances; and

*  pews reports relating to trends in our markets.

In addition, the stock market in general, and the market prices for semiconductor-related companies in
particular, have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that often have been unrelated to the

operating performance of the companies affected by these fluctuations, These broad market fluctuations may
adversely affect the market price of our common stock, regardless of our operating performance.

We have substantial indebtedness.

We have $27.2 million principal amount of 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes (the “Notes™) due
August 15, 2007 (which was paid in full on August 15, 2007), as well as $20.0 million in principal outstanding
under a commercial loan. We may incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. The level of
indebtedness, among other things, could

»  make it difficult for us to make payments on our debt and other obligations;

*  make it difficult for us to obtain any necessary future financing for working capital, capital
expenditures, debt service requirements or other purposes;

¢ require the dedication of a substantial portion of any cash flow from operations to service for
indebtedness, thereby reducing the amount of cash flow available for other purposes, including capital
expenditures;

*  limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to changes in, our business and the industries in which
we compete;

*  place us at a possible competitive disadvantage with respect to less leveraged competitors and
competitors that have better access to capital resource; and

. make us more vulnerable in the event of a further downturn in our business.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to meet our debt service obligations, including our
obligations under the Notes.
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We may not be able to pay our debt and other obligations.

If our cash flow is inadequate to meet our obligations, we could face substantial liquidity problems. The
$27.2 million principal amount of 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due August 2007 was paid on
August 15, 2007, reducing our cash and cash equivalents. In addition, we have monthly principal and interest
payments through May 2010 related to our $20.0 million term loan. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash
flow or otherwise obtain funds necessary to make required payment on the term loan, or certain of our other
obligations, we would be in default under the terms thereof, which could permit the holders of those obligations
10 accelerate their maturity and also could cause default under future indebtedness we may incur. Any such
default could have material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial position and operating results. In
addition, we may not be able to repay amounts due in respect of our obligations, if payment of those obligations
were to be accelerated following the occurrence of any other event of default as defined in the instruments
creating those obligations.

We may need additional financing, which could be difficult to obtain.

We expect that our existing cash and marketable securities, and borrowings from available bank financings,
will be sufficient to meet our cash requirements to fund operations and expected capital expenditures for the
foreseeable future. In the event we need to raise additional funds, we cannot be certain that we will be able to
obtain such additional financing on favorable terms, if at all. Further, if we issue additional equity securities,
stockholders may experience additional dilution or the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or
privileges senior 10 thase of existing holders of common stock. Future financings may place restrictions on how
we operate our business. If we cannot raise funds on acceptable terms, if and when needed, we may not be able to
develop or enhance our products and services, take advantage of future opportunities, grow our business or
respond to competitive pressures, which could seriously harm our business.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2.  Properties

All of our facilities are leased. We have achieved worldwide [SO 9001:2000 certification at our facilities.
We maintain our headquarters in Norwood, Massachusetts, where corporate administration, sales and customer
support, research and development are located in a 56,380 square foot facility under a lease, which expires in
2016. We also maintain an additional facility in a 71,000 square foot building in San Jose, California. Our lease
of this facility expires October 31, 2007. We have leased a 27,293 square foot building in Milpitas, California to
replace our facility in San Jose, California. The lease of this facility expires October, 2012. We also lease sales
and customer support offices at various locations in the United States totaling approximately 18,000 square feet.
We have a total of six leased properties in the United States, seven in Asia and five in Europe.

Our European headquarters is located in Munich, Germany, and our Asian headquarters is located in
Singapore. We also maintain sales and support offices at other locations in Europe and in Asia. Office space
leased in Asia and Europe totals approximately 75,000 square feet.

We believe that our existing facilities are adequate to meet our current and foreseeable future requirements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We have no material pending legal proceedings.

Itemd4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.
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PART I1

Item 5., Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdag National Market under the symbot “LTXX". The following
table shows the high and low closing sale prices per share of our common stock, as reported on the Nasdaq
National Market, for the periods indicated:

Period E _L_?W_
Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2007
L3 T $5.65 %445
Second QUArET ... ... ... e 5.81 4,52
Third Quarter ... ... .. . e s 6.72 5.29
Fourth Quarter . ... et e e 6.29 4.59
Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2006
First Quarter ... .. $6.57 §3.29
Second QUaMer . ... ... e e e 5.55 3.40
Third QUarter . ... ... i e e 5.96 5.05
Fourth Quarter . ......... .ot i e e 7.65 5.30

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain future
earnings to fund the development and growth of our business and, therefore, we do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future. In addition, our credit agreement with a bank contains certain covenants
that prohibit us from paying cash dividends.

As of September 14, 2007, we had approximately 824 stockholders of record of our common stock.

Compensation Plans

The following table shows information relating to the Company’s compensation plans as of July 31, 2007:

Equity Compensation Plan [nformation

Number of securities Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon Weighted average available for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity compensaticn
outstanding options, outstanding options, plans {excluding securities in
Plan Category warrants and rights  warrants and rights first column)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders .................... 9,619,296 $7.90 3,726,336*
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders .................... 0 0 0

Total ... . ... 9,019,296 7.90 3,726,336*

* Includes 500,512 shares available for issuance under an employee stock purchase plan which is intended to
qualify as such under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code.

This table excludes an aggregate of 38,251 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options assumed by

the Company in connection with the StepTech acquisition. The weighted average exercise price of the excluded
options is $0.9992.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table contains our selected consolidated financial data and is qualified by the more detailed
consolidated financial staternents and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. The selected consolidated
financial data for and as of the end of each of the five fiscal years in the period ended July 31, 2007 are derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements.

Fiscal Years ended July 31,

(En thousands)
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Netsales ... ..ot $147,639 $216,503 $ 134,531 $255,801 §$ 119,449
Costofsales . ... ..ot iuiiniiniinannnnns 77441 109,975 90,806 154,672 97,368
Inventory related provision(a) ................. 4175 221 47,457 — 48.483
Engineering and product development expenses ... 50,044 53,807 66,302 67,655 66,088
Selling, general and administrative expenses ... ... 26,770 31,135 29,366 28,037 27,321
In-process research and development ............ _— —_ —_ — 16,100
Reorganizationcosts (@) .............. .. ...... 37D 6,282 31,726 — 6,696
Income (loss) from operations . ................. (10,414) 15,083 (131,126} 5437 (142,607
Other (expense)income . .........oovie... . (252) (2,842) (1,600) (3,476) (2,461)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ............. —_ — — — —
Netincome (loSS) ... ....oiiiiivnnvnrannnennnn $(10,666) $ 12241 §(132,726) § 1,961 $(145,068)
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic ..... ... e i $ 01H % 020 8 (217§ 004§ (292)

Diluted . ....ooiiiii it e e $ @01 s 020 8 (217 s 003 & (292)
Weighted average commeon shares used in

computing net income (loss) per shares:

Basic ... 62,130 61,684 61,144 55,927 49,614

Diluted ...........0 e 62,130 62,207 61,144 58,057 49,614
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Workingcapital ............. ... e $ 87,279 $143287 § 182,957 §$292906 $ 155,905
Property and equipment, net ................... 32,483 37,633 47,135 71,329 73,443
Total assels . ... .. iiiii e 201,122 327,690 316,392 459,564 324,896
Totaldebt ........00iei i 47222 147,691 ~ 148,293 150,321 170,785
Stockholders’ equity . ......... ... oL 113,108 117,639 99,900 234,254 99,088
Other Information (unaudited):
Current ratio . . ... v v v e ie e 2.32 2.13 3.78 4.89 3.06
ASSELTUMMOVET . ... ... . . .i.iienrnnannnnn 0.73 0.66 0.43 0.56 0.37
Debt as a percentage of total capitalization . ... . ... 29.3% 56.0% 60.0% 39.1% 63.3%
Additions to property and equipment (net) ........ 8,399 6,743 11,616 17,496 17,506
Depreciation and amortization ................. 13,867 14,403 18,494 18,699 16,896

{a) See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read together with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes
thereto appearing elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K. Certain statements in *‘Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations™ are forward-looking statements that
involve risks and uncertainties. Words such as may, will, should, would, anticipates, expects, intends, plans,
believes, seeks, estimates and similar expressions identify such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking
statements contained herein are based on current expectations and entail various risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in such forward-looking statements. Factors that
might cause such a difference include, among other things, those set forth under “Risk Factors” and those
appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Readers are cautioned not to ptace undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which reflect management’s analysis only as of the date hereof. We assume no obligations to
update these forward-looking statements to reflect actual results or changes in factors or assumptions affecting
forward-looking statements.

Overview

We design, manufacture, market and service semiconductor test solutions worldwide to leading companies
in the semiconductor industry. Qur Fusion semiconductor test equipment can test a broad range of analog, digital,
mixed signal (a combination of analog and digital) and system in package, or SIP, semiconductor devices, all on
a single test platform.

LTX focuses its marketing and sales on integrated device manufacturers (IDMs), subcontractors, which
perform manufacturing services for the semiconductor industry, foundries, which provide wafer manufacturing
capability, and fabless companies, which design integrated circuits but have no manufacturing capability.

Industry Conditions and Qutlook

We sel] capital equipment and services to companies that design, manufacture, assemble or test
semiconductor devices. The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical, causing in turn a cyclical impact on our
financial results. As a capital equipment provider, our revenue is driven by the capital expenditure budgets and
spending patterns of our customers, who often delay or accelerate purchases in reaction to variations in their
business. The level of capital expenditures by these semiconductor companies depends on the current and
anticipated market demand for semiconductor devices and the products that incorporate them. Therefore, demand
for our semiconductor test equipment is dependent on growth in the semiconductor industry. In particular, three
primary characteristics of the semiconductor industry drive the demand for semiconductor test equipment:

»  increases in unit production of semiconductor devices;
*  increases in the complexity of semiconductor devices used in electronic products; and

*  the emergence of next generation device technologies, such as SIP.
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The following graph shows the cyclicality in semiconductor test equipment orders and shipments from fiscal
1997 through fiscal 2007 (using the three month moving average), as calculated by SEML, an industry trade
organization:

SOC & Logic (non-Memory) Test Equipment
3 Month Moving Average
{In § thousands)
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Consistent wiih our business strategy, we have continued to invest significant amounts in engineering and
product development to develop and enhance our Fusion platform during industry slowdowns. In fiscal 2007,
engineering and product development expense was $50.0 million, or 33.9% of net sales, as compared to $53.8
million, or 24.9% of net sales, in fiscal 2006, Our engineering and development expense decreased sequentially
on a quarterly basis during fiscal 2007 as next generation Fusion product development projects were completed.
Engineering and development expense for the first quarter of fiscal 2007 was $12.9 million and has dropped to
$12.0 million in our fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. We believe that our competilive advantage in the
semiconductor test industry is primarily driven by the ability of our Fusion platform to meet or exceed the
technical specifications required for the testing of advanced semiconductor devices in a cost-efficient manner.
Our current investment in engineering and product development is focused on enhancements to and additions to
our product offerings with new options and instruments designed for specific market segments. We believe this
will continue to differentiate the Fusion platform from the product offerings of our competitors.

In addition, over the past several years, we have increasingly transitioned the manufacture of certain
components and subassemblies to contract manufacturers, thereby reducing our fixed manufacturing costs
associated with direct labor and overhead. In fiscal 2002, we completed the transition of our final assembly,
system integration and testing operations for Fusion HF to Jabil Circuit. In fiscal 2004, we completed the
transition of our Fusion HFi, CX and DX manufacturing to Jabil Circuit. In fiscal 2005, we added Fusion EX, in
fiscal 2006, we added Fusion MX and in fiscai 2007, we added Fusion LX. This strategy has further reduced our
fixed manufacturing costs. We believe that transforming product manufacturing costs into variable costs will in
the future allow us to improve our performance during cyclical downturns while preserving our historic gross
margins during cyclical upturns.
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During fiscal years 2005 and 2006, we took several additional cost reduction measures to further mitigate
the adverse effect of cyclical downturns on our profitability. Our total worldwide headcount was reduced from
635 employees and 55 temporary workers at the end of fiscal 2004 to 436 employees and 18 temporary workers
at the end of fiscal 2007. In addition, we continued to maintain other cost reduction measures, such as the strict
oversight and reduction in discretionary travel and other variable overhead expenses. We believe that these
reductions in operating costs have reduced our costs while preserving our ability to fund critical product research
and development efforts and continue to provide our customers with the levels of responsiveness and service they
require.

We are also exposed to the risks associated with the volatility of the U.S. and global economies. The lack of
visibility regarding whether or when there will be sustained growth periods for the sale of electronic goods and
information technology equipment, and uncertainty regarding the amount of sales, underscores the need for
caution in predicting growth in the semiconductor test equipment industry in general and in our revenues and
profits specifically. Slow or negative growth in the domestic economy may continue to materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations for the foreseeable future. The Company’s
results of operations would be further adversely affected if we were to experience lower than anticipated order
levels, cancellations of orders in backlog, exiended customer delivery requirements or pricing pressure as a result
of a slowdown. At lower levels of revenue, there is a higher likelihood that these types of changes in our
customers’ requirements would adversely affect our results of operations because in any particular quarter a
limited number of transactions accounts for an even greater portion of sales for the quarter.

Critical Accounting Policies and the Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, We based these estimates and
assumptions on historical experience, and evaluate them on an on-going basis to ensure they remain reasonable
under current conditions. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We believe that our most critical
accounting policies upon which our financial reporting depends on and which involve the most complex and
subjective decisions or assessments are as follows: revenue recognition, mventory reserves, income taxes,
warranty, goodwill and other intangibles, impairment of long-lived assets and allowances for doubtful accounts.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue recognition policy is described in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, contained in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report. The Company
recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery or customer acceptance, if
required, has occurred or services have been rendered, the seller’s price is fixed or determinable and coliectibility
is reasonably assured. In the future, if acceptance provisions significantly change, the timing of the revenue
recognition could be affected.

Inventory Reserve

We sell capital equipment to companies that design, manufacture, assemble, and test semiconductor devices.
We are exposed to a number of economic and industry factors that could result in portions of our inventory
becoming either obsolete or in excess of anticipated usage. These factors include, but are not limited to, changes
in our customers’ capital expenditures, technological changes in our markets, our ability to meet changing
customer requirements, competitive pressures in products and prices, and the availability of key components
from our suppliers. Our policy is to establish inventory reserves when conditions exist that suggest our inventory
may be in excess of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon our assumptions about future demand for our
products or market conditions. We regularly evaluate the ability to realize the value of our inventory based on a
combination of factors including the following: historical usage rates, forecasted sales or usage, estimated
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product end of life dates, estimated current and future market values and new product introductions. Purchasing
and alternative usage options are also explored to mitigate inventory exposure. When recorded, our reserves are
intended to reduce the carrying value of our inventory to its net realizable value. Pursuant to SAB Topic 5-BB,
inventory reserves establish a new cost basis for inventory. Such reserves are not reversed until the related
inventory is sold or otherwise disposed. For the twelve months ended July 31, 2007, we recorded $4.4 million of
sales related to previously reserved items. There was $2.5 million of sales related to previously reserved items
recorded for the twelve months ended July 31, 2006 and $2.1 million for the twelve months ended July 31, 2005.
The net incremental gross margin and net income for these transactions of $1.0 million for July 31, 2007, $1.1
million for July 31, 2006 and $1.4 million for July 31, 2005 did not have a significant impact on operating
margins and overall operating results. As of July 31, 2007, our inventory of $27.1 million is stated net of
inventory reserves of $41.4 million and consists of Fusion products and engineering materials. Of the $27.1
million inventory balance at July 31, 2007, $9.2 million consists of “last time buy” custom components primarily
for Fusion HFi and $12.1 million consists of materials and components to support current requirements for
Fusion HFi and X-Series, $5.3 million consists of evaluation inventory at customers and $0.5 million consists of
deferred costs related to shipment of inventory where revenue recognition is subject to product acceptance. If
actual demand for our products deteriorates or market conditions are less favorable than those that we project,
additional inventory reserves may be required. See Notes 2 and 10 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Income Taxes

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”,
(“SFAS No. 109”) the Company recognizes deferred income taxes based on the expected future tax
consequences of differences between the financial statement basis and the tax bases of assets and liabilities,
calculated using enacted tax rates for the year in which the differences are expected to be refiected in the tax
return. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred taxes to the amount expected to
be realized.

The Company has deferred tax assets resuiting from tax credit carryforwards, net operating losses and other
deductible temporary differences, which wili reduce taxable income in future periods. SFAS No. 109 requires
that a valuation allowance be established when it is “more likely than not” that all or a portion of deferred tax
assets will not be realized. A review of all available positive and negative evidence needs to be considered,
including a company’s performance, the market environment in which the Company operates, length of
carryback and carryforward periods, existing sales backlog and future sales projections. Where there are
cumulative losses in recent years, SFAS No. 109 creates a strong presumption that a valuation allowance is
needed. This presumption can be overcome in very limited circumstances. As a result of our cumulative loss
position in recent years and the increased uncertainty relative to the timing of profitability in future periods, we
continue to maintain a valuation allowance for our entire net deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets increased from $224.2 million at July 31, 2006, to $229.9 million at July 31, 2007. We expect
to record a full valuation allowance on future tax benefits untit we can sustain an appropriate level of
profitability. Until such time, we would not expect to recognize any significant tax benefits in our future results
of operations. We will continue to monitor the recoverability of our deferred tax assets on a periodic basis. See
Note 5 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, :

Warranty

The Company provides standard warranty coverage on its systems, providing labor and parts necessary to
repair the systems during the warranty period. The Company accounts for the estimated warranty cost as a charge
to cost of sales when the revenue is recognized. The estimated warranty cost is based on historical product
performance and field expenses. The Company uses actual service hours, and parts expense per system, and
applies the actual labor and overhead rates to estimate the warranty charge. The actual product performance and/
or field expense profiles may differ, and in those cases the Company adjusts warranty accruals accordingly.
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Asseis™, which
requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized. Intangible assets
with a definite useful life are amortized over their estimated useful life. Assets recorded in these categories are
tested for impairment at least annually or when a change in circumstances may result in future impairment.
Intangible assets are recorded at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in an acquisition, including research
and development, are recorded using the purchase method of accounting. Assets acquired in an acquisition are
recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. If the carrying value of the asset is in excess of
the present value of the expected future cash flows, the carrying vaiue is written down to fair value in the period
identified.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assels

On an ongoing basis, we review the value and period of amortization or depreciation of long-lived assets.
Included in long-lived assets is machinery, equipment, spare parts used for service, office furniture, office
equipment and leasehold improvements. During the review, we reevaluate the significant assumplions used in
determining the original cost of long-lived assets. Although the assumptions may vary from transaction to
transaction, they generally include revenue growth, operating results, cash flows and other indicators of value.
We then determine whether there has been a permanent impairment of the value of long-lived assets based upon
events or circumstances that have occurred since acquisition. The extent of the impairment amount recognized is
based upon a determination of the fair value of the impaired asset.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

A majority of our trade receivables are derived from sales to large multinational semiconductor
manufacturers throughout the world. In order to monitor potential credit losses, we perform ongoing credit
evaluations of our customers’ financial condition. An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for potential
credit losses based upon assessment of the expected collectibility of all accounts receivable. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is reviewed periodically to assess the adequacy of the allowances. In any circumstances in
which we are aware of a customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations, we take a certain percentage of the
accounts receivable balance as an allowance, which is based on the age of the receivables, the circumstances
surrounding the customer’s financial situation and our historical experience. If circumstances change, and the
financial condition of our customers were adversely affected resulting in their inability to meet their financial
obligations to us, we may need to record additional allowances,
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the principal items included in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations data.

Year Ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

Netsales ... i i i i i e $147,639 $216,503 $ 134,531
oSt Of 8alES . ..ttt e e e e e e 77441 109,975 90,806
Inventory related provision . ........ ... ... .. . L 4,175 221 47457
Gross profit (JOSS) . ... it e e 66,023 106,307 (3,732)
Engineering and product development expenses . ...................... 50,044 53,807 66,302
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............. ... .. .. ..un, 26,770 35,135 29,366
Reorganization COSIS .. ... vvvett ettt ettt et 37N 6,282 31,726
Income (loss) from operations ............. . i (10,414) 15,083  (131,126)
IIEETESt EXPEINSE « . o v vt v et it e et et e e (4,909 (8,956) (6,832)
INVESIMENE INCOMIE . . o\ttt et ettt e e ettt e e et et et e 4,657 6,114 5,232
Netincome (10S8) . ...ttt ittt ee s $(10,666) $ 12,241 $(132,726)
Net income (loss) per share:

BaSIC © ittt e $ 0IH % 020 3% 217D

Diluted . ..o e et $§ Iy $ 020 % (217

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the principal items included in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations as percentages of total net sales,

Percentage of Net Sales
Year Ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
= 7 = R U U U PN 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost Of SAlES . ... o e e et e 52.5 50.8 67.5
Inventory related provision . .......... .. o i i 2.8 0.1 353
Gross profit {l0SS) ... .0 rur e e 44,7 49.1 (2.8)
Engineering and product development expenses ..................conan.. 339 249 49.3
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses ...............ovvriiiaan.- 18.0 14.3 21.8
Reorganizalion CoStS . ... ...t it i it (0.3) 2.9 23.6
Income {loss) from operations .. ... .. ... i it i e e s .1 7.0 (97.5)
Interest eXpense ... ... ...ttt e e (3.3) 4.1) (5.1)
InVeStMENt IMCOME ... ettt et ittt ettt a e 32 2.8 3.9
Net InCome (JOSS) ..ottt it e e e et ee e i it e (7.2Y% 57% (98.7)%

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Net Sales. Net sales consist of semiconductor test equipment, related hardware and software support, and
maintenance services, net of returns and allowances. Net sales were $147.6 million in fiscal 2007 and $216.5
million in fiscal 2006. The decrease in net sales year over year is primarily a result of an overall industry wide
slowdown which began to impact net sales during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006 and has continued into
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007. During the second half of calendar year 2006, which is the Company’s first
half of its fiscal 2007, semiconductor device manufacturers reduced their capital equipment spending levels in
line with these adverse conditions resulting in a decreased demand for new purchases of semiconductor test
equipment.
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Sales to our ten largest customers accounted for 79.4% and 82.1% of revenues for the twelve months ended
July 31, 2007 and July 31, 2006, respectively. Sales from X-Series products totaled $89.0 miilion or 75% of
product revenue in fiscal year 2007, and $89.2 million, or 49% of product revenue in fiscal year 2006. See Note 8
to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Service revenue, consisting of sales of replacement and spare parts and labor charges, totaled $29.3 million,
or 19.8% of net sales, in fiscal 2007 and $33.2 million, or 15.3% of net sales, in fiscal 20006. The decrease in
service revenue is directly attributable to customer adjustments 1o their level of service needed to support
equipment utilization operating rates and lower overall new equiptment sales.

Geographically, sales to customers outside the United States were $98.4 million, or 66.6% of net sales, in
fiscal 2007 and $127.6 million, or 58.9% of net sales, in fiscal 2006.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales consists of material, outsourced manufacturing costs, labor, and depreciation
and associated overhead. Cost of sales decreased by $32.6 miltion to $77.4 million in fiscal 2007 from $110.0
million in fiscal 2006. As a percentage of net sales, cost of sales was 52.3% of net sales in fiscal 2007 as
compared to 50.8% of net sales in fiscal 2006. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales increased 1.7 percentage
points year over year in fiscal 2007. The increase in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales when comparing
fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2006, is mainly due to the drop in fixed cost year over year was not in the same proportion as
the drop in year over year net sales. This resulted in the fixed cost component of cost of sales to be a greater
percentage of net sales in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006.

Inventory Related Provision. The Company reviews excess and obsolete inventory when conditions exist
that suggest our inventory may be in excess of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon our assumptions
about future demand for our products or market conditions, We also evalvate our excess and obsolete inventory
on a quarterly basis identifying and addressing significant events that might have an impact on inventeries and
related reserves. The major variables impacting inventory usage are the demand for current products, overall
industry conditions, key sales initiatives and the impact that our new product introductions have on current
product demand.

For the quarter ended April 30, 2007, the Company recorded a $4.2 million inventory related provision
related to the Fusion HFi product line. The provision was required as a result of two major factors that
materialized during the quarter. First, the Company’s assessment of our Fusion HFi customers demand for HFi
due to the lower demand in the markets they serve and second, the projected impact from our customers who
have increased adoption of our X-Series platform by transferring test capacity from HFi to a lower cost to test
X-Series alternative. The favorable performance/price characteristics of our X-Series testers has enabled
customers to transition certain devices currently being tested on the Fusion HFi platform to our X-Series testers.
This is expected to result in increased available HFi capacity at our customers and will likely reduce HFi
purchases in the future.

There were no significant inventory provisions recorded in fiscal 2006.

Engineering and Product Development Expenses. Engineering and product development expenses were
$50.0 million, or 33.9% of net sales, in fiscal 2007 as compared to $53.8 million, or 24.9% of net sales, in fiscal
2006. The $3.8 million decrease in engineering and product development expenses in 2007 from 2006 was a
result of completion of next generation Fusion product development projects which enabled us to initiate
workforce reductions in fiscal year 2006 and 2005. Additionally, we have been able to leverage and re-use
X-Series engineering development across a broader range of applications than in the past with our Fusion HF and
HFi products. This trend has continued in fiscal year 2007 resulting in more efficient use of engineering
rescurces and lower costs,

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $26.8
million, or 18.0% of net sales, in fiscal 2007 as compared to $31.1 million, or 14.3% of net sales, in fiscal 2006.
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The decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses was primarily due to lower variable expenses on
lower sales volume, such as lower sales commissions and employee profit sharing.

Reorganization Costs. For the twelve months ended July 31, 2007, the Company re-evaluated the
requirements of its reorganization accrual for severance and recognized a gain of $0.4 million in the quarter
ended April 30, 2007. The gain was due primarily to several of the workforce reductions and related expenses
that were not required, due to less than expected post termination outplacement services provided to terminated
employees. There were $6.3 million in reorganization costs recorded for the prior year ended July 31, 2006. The
$6.3 million of reorganization cost recorded in fiscal 2006 related to $1.9 million in severance and facilities
charges primarily resulting from the closure of our facility in the United Kingdom, and $4.2 million for
severance cost related to the Company’s October 25, 2005 workforce reduction and $0.2 million recorded in the
quarter ended July 31, 2006 relating to the relocation of the Company’s corporate headquarters.

Interest Expense. Interest expense for fiscal year 2007 was $4.9 miltlion as compared to $9.0 million for
fiscal year 2006. The decrease in interest expense is a result of a $100.5 million decrease in total outstanding
interest bearing debt. Total interest bearing debt was $47.2 million as of July 31, 2007 as compared to $147.7
million as of July 31, 2006.

Investment Income. Investment income was $4.7 million for fiscal 2007 as compared to $6.1 miltion for
fiscal 2006. The decrease in investment income is due 1o lower available cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities balances due to pay down of debt obligations during the year.

Income Tax. No provision was recorded in 2007 and 2006 due to the net loss recorded in fiscal 2007 and
utilization of net operating loss carry forwards Lo offset taxable income in fiscal 2006. Due to our cumulative loss
position, management concluded that it was appropriate to continue to maintain a full valuation allowance for the
Company's nel operating loss and other carry forwards, and net deferred tax assets. The Company recorded no
income tax benefit for fiscal year 2007 due to the increase in the valuation allowance to fully reserve net
operating loss and other carry forwards, and net deferred tax assets. The Company will continue to record a
100% valuation allowance until it is more likely than not we will utilize the net operating loss and other carry
forwards, and deferred tax assets. The gross deferred tax asset is valued at $229.9 million as of July 31, 2007
with a 100% valuation allowance.

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

Net Sales. Net sales consist of semiconductor test equipment, related hardware and software support, and
maintenance services, net of returns and allowances. Net sales were $216.5 miltion in fiscal 2006 and $134.5
million in fiscal 2005. The increase in net sales year over year is primarily a result of a continued upward trend in
incoming orders for semiconductor test equipment which began in the Company’s third quarter of fiscal 2005
and has continued to favorably impact net sales into our fourth quarter, as well as the increased demand for our
next generation Fusion products. Driving this demand is business in the following end markets: Communications
SOC, DSP, RF Wireless, Automotive, Power, and Mixed Signal/Converter.

Sales to our ten largest customers accounted for 82.1% and 77.2% of revenues for the twelve months ended
July 31, 2006 and July 31, 2005, respectively. Reduced sales from any one of our largest customers could have a
significant effect on our sales. Sales from X-Series products (CX, DX, EX, MX) totaled $89.2 million or 49% of
product revenue in fiscal year 2006, and $33.6 million, or 32.6% of product revenue in fiscal year 2005. See Note
8 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Service revenue, consisting of sales of replacement and spare parts and labor charges, totaled $33.2 million,
or 15.3% of net sales, in fiscal 2006 and $31.5 million, or 23.4% of net sales, in fiscal 2005. The increase in
service revenue is directly attributable to customer adjustments to their level of service needed to support their
equipment utilization run rates.
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Geographically, sales to customers outside the United States were $127.6 million, or 58.9% of net sales, in
fiscal 2006 and $93.3 million, or 69.3% of net sales, in fiscal 2005,

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales consists of material, outsourced manufacturing costs, labor, depreciation and
associated overhead. Cost of sales increased by $19.2 million to $110.0 million in fiscal 2006 from $90.8 million
in fiscal 2005. As a percentage of net sales, cost of sales was 50.8% of net sales in fiscal 2006 as compared to
67.5% of net sales in fiscal 2005. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales decreased 16.7% year over year in
fiscal 2006. The improvement in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales when comparing fiscal 2006 1o fiscal
2003, is due to a more favorable product mix of higher end configurations within the HFi series, a larger
percentage of our newer X-Series products which carry higher profit margins and the impact of our cost
reduction actions to lower fixed overhead expenses initiated during fiscal 2005.

Inventory Related Provision. The Company reviews excess and obsolete inventory when conditions exist
that suggest our inventory may be in excess of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon our assumptions
about future demand for our products or market conditions. We also evaluate our excess and obselete inventory
on a quarterly basis identifying and addressing significant events that might have an impact on inventories and
related reserves. The major variables impacting inventory usage are the demand for current products, overall
industry conditions, key sales initiatives and the impact that our new product introductions have on current
product demand. In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, our major customers reduced their forecasts for capital
equipment purchases, which resulted in a sudden and substantial drop in revenues and orders for the Company.
As a result of the shorter than expected upturn in business conditions in fiscal 2004, and the completion of the
Company’s transition to its second generation Fusion, we deemed it appropriate to make an adjustment to our
inventory and recorded a $47.5 million excess and obsolete inventory provision, Of the $47.5 million reserve,
approximately 90% was related to first generation Fusion and consisted of raw materials, work-in-process and
finished goods. The remaining 10% was related to excess second generation Fusion products and was made to
more accurately reflect the Company’s assessment of current product demand. There were no significant
inventory provisions recorded in fiscal 2006. For the twelve months ended July 31, 2006, we recorded $2.5
million in sales of previously reserved items, compared to $2.1 million in fiscal 2005 which represents the gross
cash received from the customer. The net incremental gross margin and net income for these transactions of $1.1
million for July 31, 2006 and $1.4 million for July 31, 2005 did not have a significant impact on operating
margins and the results.

Engineering and Product Development Expenses. Engineering and product development expenses were
$53.8 million, or 24.9% of net sales, in fiscal 2006 as compared to $66.3 million, or 49.3% of net sales, in fiscal
2005. The $12.5 million decrease in engineering and product development expenses in 2006 from 2005 was a
result of completion of next generation Fusion product development projects which enabled us to initiate
workforce reductions in fiscal year 2006 and 2005. These saving were partially offset by a $1.0 million increase
due to stock-based compensation expense in fiscal 2006, compared to no stock-based compensation expense in
fiscal 2005. Additionally, we have been able to leverage and re-use X-Series engineering development across a
broader range of applications than in the past with our Fusion HF and HFi products. This has resulted in more
efficient vse of engineering resources and lower costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $31.1
million, or 14.3% of net sales, in fiscal 2006 as compared 1o $29.4 million, or 21.8% of net sales, in fiscal 2005.
The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was primarily due to a $2.7 million accrual for
employee profit sharing and $3.5 million of stock-based compensation expense in fiscal 2006, compared to no
stock-based compensation expense in fiscal 2005, which was partially offset by savings from our workforce
reductions made in fiscal 2005 and 2006.

Reorganization Costs. For the quarter ended July 31, 2006, the Company recorded a reorganization charge
of approximately $0.2 million, relating primarily to the relocation of the Company’s corporate headquarters.

For the quarter ended January 31, 2006, the Company recorded a reorganization charge of approximately
$1.9 million, of which $0.6 million consisted of severance and employee benefit costs relating to Europe
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workforce reductions, $1.2 million for future lease obligations and $0.3 million of plant closure expenses and
legal costs related to the closure of the Company’s facilities in the United Kingdom. These expenses were
partially offset by a $0.2 million reversal of a previously recorded liability for the remaining lease payments of
the Company’s Westwood, Massachusetts facility. In connection with the relocation of its corporate headquarters
to Norwood, Massachusetts the Company signed an agreement during the quarter ended January 31, 2006 which
reduced the future liability previously recorded in fiscal 2005. Approximately $1.1 million of cash payments
relating to the $1.9 million recrganization charge were made during the fiscal year ending July 31, 2006. The
remaining $0.8 million will be paid out over fiscal years 2007, 2008 and 2009. The Company expects to realize
$0.8 million in annualized savings from the European facility related actions beginning in the quarter ended
July 31, 2006. In addition, we continued to maintain other cost reduction measures, such as the strict oversight
and reduction in discretionary travel and other variable overhead expenses. We believe that these reductions in
operating costs have reduced our costs while preserving our ability to fund critical product research and
development efforts and continue to provide our customers with the levels of responsiveness and service they
require.

On October 23, 2005, LTX Corporation took actions to reduce its operating expenses, including reducing its
worldwide workforce by approximately 15%, eliminating 77 positions. Of the 77 positions, 74% were from
engineering, 14% from administration, 7% from manufacturing and 5% were from sales and marketing. The
Company took these actions based on a continuing review of its business plans and operations. The Company
expects to realize annual savings in operating expenses of approximately $8.0 million as a result of these actions.
For the quarter ended October 31, 2005, the Company recorded a recrganization charge retating to workforce
reductions and the separation agreement with its Chief Executive Officer of $4.2 million, of which $2.3 million
consisted of severance costs relating to a worldwide workforce reduction, which was paid during the fiscal year
ending July 31, 2006, and a $1.9 million charge relating to the separation of the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer. The separation agreement with the Company’s Chief Executive Officer has a $1.2 million cash
component, and a non-cash component of $0.7 million of expense related to the acceleration of stock options. For
more information, please refer to the Company’s current reports on Form 8-K filed on October 27, 2005 and
November 4, 2005,

Interest Expense. Interest expense for fiscal year 2006 was $9.0 million as compared to $6.8 million for
fiscal year 2005, and consists primarily of interest expense for the balance of the 4.25% Convertible
Subordinated Notes and interest expense of 8.25% (the lender’s variable prime rate} as of July 31, 2006 on the
$60.0 million long-term loan with a commercial lender which closed on June 3, 2005. The proceeds of the $60.0
million term loan were used to repurchase in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, $61.7 million of the 4.25%
Convertibte Subordinated Notes. The increase in expense is a result of replacing the $61.7 million of debt at
4,25% with the $60.0 million of bank debt at prime rate which was 8.25% as of July 31, 2006, and a higher
interest rate associated with the extended maturity on the Company’s $27.2 million Convertible Subordinated
Notes due August 2007.

Investment Income. Investment income was $6.1 million for fiscal 2006 as compared to $5.2 million for
fiscal 2005. The increase in investment income is due to rising interest rates and an increase in cash in fiscal
2006 as compared to fiscal 2005.

Income Tax. No provision was recorded in 2006 due to the utilization of net operating loss carry forwards
to offset taxable income. Due to our cumulative loss position, management concluded that it was appropriate to
continue to maintain a fult valuation allowance for the Company’s net operating loss and other carry forwards,
and net deferred tax assets. The Company recorded no income tax benefit for fiscal year 2005 due to the increase
in the valuation allowance to fully reserve net operating loss and other carry forwards, and net deferred tax
assets. The Company will contine 10 record a 100% valuation allowance until it is more likely than not we will
utilize the net operating foss and other carry forwards, and deferred tax asset. The gross deferred tax asset is
valued at $224.2 million as of July 31, 2006 with a 100% valuation allowance.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of July 31, 2007, the Company had $98.5 million in cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities
and net working capital of $87.3 million, as compared to $194.2 million of cash and cash equivalents and
marketable securities and $143.3 million of net working capital at July 31, 2006. The decrease in the cash and
cash equivalents and marketable securities was due primarily to the principal payment of $61.1 million of the
4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes in August 2006 and approximately $36.0 million net cash outflows in
connection with the modification of the $60.0 million term loan in December 2006 and capital expenditures of
$8.4 million which was partially offset by $11.0 million cash provided by operating activities over the twelve
months ended July 31, 2007. Working capital decreased by $56.0 million from July 31, 2006 as a result of $36.0
million of net cash payments to modify our $60.0 million term loan and a shift in the classification from long
term to short term of our $27.2 million Convertible Subordinated Notes due and paid in full on August 15, 2007.
The cash payments related to the debt modification and the debt reclassifications from long term to short term
were offset by positive cash provided from operations of $11.0 million.

Accounts receivable from trade customers, net of allowances, was $22.5 million at July 31, 2007, as
compared to $38.7 million at July 31, 2006. The principal reason for the $16.2 million decrease in accounts
receivable is a result of decreased sales. The allowance for sales returns and doubtful accounts was $1.3 million,
or 5.3% of gross trade accounts receivable, at July 31, 2007 and $1.4 million, or 3.5% of gross trade accounts
receivablie at July 31, 2006. The decrease in the allowance of $0.1 million was principally a result of amounts due
that are in dispute that were deemed uncallectible and written off.

Accounts receivable from other sources decreased $1.8 million to $1.5 million at July 31, 2007, as
compared to $3.3 million at July 31, 2006. The decrease was attributed to the decrease in sales and increase in
cash collections of component inventory transferred to our outsource suppliers.

Net inventories decreased by $2.7 million to $27.1 mitlion at July 31, 2007 as compared to $29.8 million at
July 31, 2006. The Company recorded a $4.2 million inventory related provision in the quarter ended Aprit 30,
2007 of which $2.4 miilion related to HFi inventory held by our suppliers on our behalf deemed to be in excess
of our future requirements. This amount has been recognized as a contingent liability with no impact on the net
inventory balances on the LTX balance sheet. The remaining $1.8 million provision relates to inventory owned
by LTX. The nel inventory decrease year over year of $2.7 million was due to the LTX owned inventory subject
to reserve of $1.8 million and $0.9 of reduction in active production inventory.

Prepaid expense decreased by $0.4 million to $3.8 million at July 31, 2007 as compared to $4.2 million at
July 31, 2006. The decrease is due to $1.3 million amortization of prepaid expenses and maintenance contracts
which was partially offset by an $0.8 million reclassification from long term other asset to short term prepaid and
other assets relating to the Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan that will be liguidated in January 2008.

Capital expenditures totaled $8.4 million for the twelve months ended July 31, 2007, as compared to $6.7
miltion for the twelve months ended July 31, 2006, The principal reasons for the $1.7 million increase in
expenditures is attributed to the leasehold improvements made to our new corporate headquarters in Norwood,
Massachusetts, a renovation of our Singapore facility, spare parts for X-Series products and application
develepment equipment used internally Lo support new targeted growth opportunities.

On June 3, 2005, the Company closed a $60.0 million term loan with a commercial lender (the *2005 Loan
Agreement’). The loan had a five year term. Interest was at the lender’s variable prime rate and was payable
menthly. The Company entered into a new Loan and Security Agreement (the “2006 Loan Agreement”), dated as
of December 7, 2006, with Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”) to modify the existing $60.0 million term loan. Under
the terms of the 2006 Loan Agreement, LTX borrowed $20.0 million under a term loan at an interest rate of
prime minus 1.25% with interest-only payable during the first 2 months. The loan is secured by all assets of the
Company located in the United States. Principal of this term loan is repayable over four years as follows:

= meonths 13 to 24: $300,000.00 per month
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*+  months 25 to 36: $600,000.00 per month
+  months 37 to 48: $766,666.67 per month

The financing arrangement under the 2006 Loan Agreement also provides LTX with a $30.0 million
revolving credit facility. No amount was outstanding under the revolving credit facility as of July 31, 2007.

In connection with the 2006 Loan Agreement, LTX has terminated the 2005 Loan Agreement and has repaid
all outstanding amounts under the 2005 Loan Agreement. The net effect of this transaction reduced existing cash
on hand by approximately $36.0 million in the quarter ended January 31, 2007.

The Company has a second credit facility with another lender for a revolving credit line of $5.0 million.
This facility is secured by cash and marketable securities. This line of credit secures obligations of operating
leases and existing stand-by letters of credit. The line availability is $2.8 million as of July 31, 2007. The facility
expires on October 31, 2007.

In August 2001, we received net proceeds of $145.2 million from a private placement of 4.25% Convertible
Subordinated Notes due August, 2006. Interest on the 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes were payable on
February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing February 15, 2002. The notes were convertible into shares
of our common stock at any time prior to the close of business on August 15, 2006, unless previously redeemed,
at a conversion price of $29.04 per share, subject to certain adjustments. The notes are unsecured and
subordinated in right of payment in full to all existing and future senior indebtedness of the Company. Expenses
associated with the offering of approximately $4.8 million were being amortized using the straight-line method
of depreciation, which approximates the effective interest method, over the term of the notes. During the fourth
fiscal quarter of 2005, the Company repurchased $61.7 million of the outstanding principal balance of the notes
for a purchase price of $60.0 million. On November 14, 2005, the Company exchanged $27.2 million in
aggregate principal amount of the notes plus ali accrued and unpaid interest thereon for an equal principal
amount of newly issued 4,25% Convertible Senior Notes (the “New Notes™) due August 2007. On August 8,
2006, the Company utilized existing cash on hand to pay the remaining outstanding balance of the $61.1 million
of 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes. The Company paid the remaining $27.2 million outstanding principal
of New Notes, together with accrued interest, on August 15, 2007 with existing cash balances. As of August 15,
2007, there are no outstanding notes.

The Company has a non-qualified deferred compensation arrangement for a select group of management or
highly compensated employees. The Company has two plans that have been discontinued with respect to new
deferrals: (i) the LTX Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan that was adopted effective December 1, 2001,
(referred to herein as the “Frozen Plan™) and (ii) a newer plan that complies with the requirements of Code
Section 409A and related Treasury guidance and that governs all amounts deferred on or after January 1, 2005
(referred to herein as the “New Plan”). The Frozen Plan’s accumulated balances were distributed in a lump sum
payment of approximately $2.3 million in January 2007, with the proceeds from the cash surrender value of the
insurance policy used to fund this plan, and the New Plan’s accumulated balances of approximately $1.0 million
will be paid out in a lump sum in January 2008 with proceeds from the cash surrender value of the insurance
policy used to fund this plan. The proceeds and related liability associated with these plans are reported as other
assets, and other accrued expenses, respectively.

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan for its operation in the United Kingdom. The plan was
constituted in October 1981 to provide defined benefit pension and lump sum benefits, payable on retirement, for
employees of LTX({Europe)} Limited, (“"UK”). The plan has 71 participants of which 2 remain as active employee
members and 69 are non-active former employees but for whom benefits are preserved. The plan has been closed
to all new members since December 31, 2000. Annually, the Company obtains an actuarial valuation of the
pension plan. The plan was under-funded as of July 31, 2007 by $3.9 million. The Company has recorded this
liability as other long-term liabilities of $3.6 million and accrued short-term liabilities of $0.3 million on the
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consolidated balance sheet as of July 31, 2007. Cash payments are projected to be approximately $0.3 million in
fiscal 2008 and actual cash payments were $0.4 million in fiscal 2007. The net pension expense recorded was not
significant for the twelve months ended July 31, 2007.

The Company operates in a highly cyclical industry and we may experience, with relatively short notice,
significant fluctuations in demand for our products. This could result in a material effect on our liquidity
position. To mitigate the risk, we have completed a substantial and lengthy process of converting our
manufacturing process to an outsource model. In addition, we continue to maintain other cost reduction
measures, such as the strict oversight of discretionary travel and other variable overhead expenses. We believe
that these reductions in operating costs have reduced our costs while preserving our ability to fund critical
product research and development efforts and continue to provide our customers with the levels of
responsiveness and service they require. As such, we believe we can react to a downturn or a significant upturn
much faster than in the past. We believe that our balances of cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities,
cash flows expected to be generated by future operating activities, our access to capital markets for competitively
priced instruments and funds available under our credit facilities will be sufficient to meet our cash requirements
over the next twelve to twenty-four months, which includes the payment of the outstanding principal of the New
Notes discussed above.

Commitments and Contingencies

Our major outstanding contractual obligations are refated to our convertible subordinated notes, facilities
leases and other capital and operating leases. The Company has 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes, with
$27.2 million due in August 2007. Interest on the notes is payable on February 15 and August 15 of each year,
which commenced February 15, 2002, The notes and accrued interest were paid in full subsequent to July 31,
2007, on August 15, 2007. As of July 31, 2007, the Company also has $20.0 million in principal outstanding
under a commercial loan,

The aggregate outstanding amount of the contractual obligations is $87.1 million as of July 31, 2007. These
obligations and commitments represent maximum payments based on current cash flow forecasts. Certain of the
commitments could be reduced if changes to our operating forecasts occur in the future.

We have approximately $16.8 miltion of non cancelable inventory commitments with our outsource
suppliers as of July 31, 2007. We expect to consume this inventory through normal operating activity over the
next three to six months.

The following summarizes LTX's contractual obligations, at July 31, 2007 and the effect such obligations
are expected 1o have on its liquidity and cash flow in the future periods:

Total 2008 2009 - 2010 2011 -2012 Thereafter
(In thousands)

Financial Obligations

Convertible subordinated notes ............... $29.091 $29091 § — $ — $ —
Termloan ........ ..., 23,184 3,486 15,796 3,902 —
Operating leases ........................... 13,691 3,399 3,771 2,739 3,782
Pensions and severance ..................... 4,353 794 682 682 2,195
Inventory commitments ..................... 16,772 16,772 — — —_
Total Financial Obligations ...................... $87,091 $53,542 520,249 $7,323 $5,977

31




The following table contains the major cash requirements as of July 31, 2007:

2008 Estimate
{In thousands)

Interest payments . . ... ... ... e $ 3257
Principal payments . ......... . . 29,320
Capital expenditures .................. i 7,000
Operating leases payments . ..............irrnieeennnaennneennenns 3,399
Pensions and severance ........... ... ... ... i 794
Inventory commitments . . . ........ . ... i e 16,772
Total major cash requirements ................... . oiiiiiiiaii... $60,542

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN No. 487), “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109", which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes™. FIN No. 48
clarifies the application of SFAS No. 109 by defining criteria that an individual tax position must meet for any
part of the benefit of that position to be recognized in the financial statements. Additionally, FIN No. 48 provides
guidance on the measurement, de-recognition, classification and disclosure of tax positions along with the
accounting for the related interest and penalties. The provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for the fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as
an adjustment to opening retained eamnings. We will be required to adopt FIN No. 48 for our fiscal year
beginning August 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN No. 48 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operating or liquidity.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577). SFAS
No. 157 provides guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard also responds to
investors’ requests for more information about (1) the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities at
fair value, (2) the information used to measure fair value, and (3) the effect that fair-value measurements have on
earnings. SFAS No. 157 will apply whenever another standard requires (or permits) assets or habilities to be
measured at fair value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value to any new circumstances. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November L5, 2007. The
Company will adopt this requirement for our fiscal year beginning August 1, 2008. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” (“SFAS No. 158”), an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R). SFAS No. 158 represents the completion of the first phase in the
FASB’s postretirement benefits accounting project and requires an entity to recognize in its statement of
financial position an asset for a defined benefit postretirement plan’s over-funded status or a liability for a plan’s
under-funded status, measure a defined benefit postretirement plan’s assets and obligations that determine its
funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year, and recognize changes in the funded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan in comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. The requirement to
recognize the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and the disclosure requirements are effective
for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations
as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 2008. The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 as of July 31, 2007. The adoption of SFAS
No. 158 impacted the Company’s balance sheet at July 31, 2007 as follows: (i) a decrease in other intangible
assets of $773,000 and (ii) an increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss of $773,000. The adoption of
SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income for the year ended July 31, 2007 or for any prior period presented. SFAS No. 158 did not have a material
impact to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued Staternent of Financial Accounting Standard No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 1597). SFAS No. 159 provides companies
with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The Standard’s objective is to reduce
both complexity in accounting for financial instruments and the volatility in earnings caused by measuring
related assets and liabitities differently. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal
year beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of the previous fiscal
year provided that the entity makes that choice in the first 120 days of that fiscal year and also elects 1o apply the
provisions of SFAS No. 157. The Company will adopt this requirement for our fiscal year beginning August 1,
2008. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on
its financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit-risk consist principally of
investments in cash equivalents, short-term investments and trade receivables. We place our invesiments with
high-quality financial institutions, limit the amount of credit exposure to any one institution and have established
investment guidelines relative to diversification and maturities designed to maintain safety and liquidity.

Our primary exposures to market risks include fluctuations in interest rates on our short-term and long-term
debt of approximately $47.2 million as of July 31, 2007, and in foreign currency exchange rates. We are subject
to interest rate risk on our short-term and long-term borrowings under our credit and loan facilities. Our short-
term and long-term bank debt bears interest at the lender’s variable prime rate. Long-term debt interest rates are
fixed for the term of the Notes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Operating in international markets involves exposure to movements in currency exchange rates. Currency
exchange rate movements typically also reflect economic growth, inflation, interest rates, government actions
and other factors. We transact business in various foreign currencies and, accordingly, we are subject to exposure
from adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. As currency exchange rates fluctuate, translation of
the statements of operations of our international businesses into U.S. dollars may affect year-over-year
comparability and could cause us to adjust our financing and operating strategies. To date, the effect of changes
in foreign currency exchange rates on revenues and operating expenses have not been material. Substantially all
of our revenues are invoiced and collected in U.S. dollars. Our trade receivables result primarily from sales to
semiconductor manufacturers located in North America, Japan, the Pacific Rim and Europe. In fiscal 2007, our
revenues derived from sales outside the United States constituted 67% of our total revenues. Accounts receivable
in currencies other than U.S. dollars comprise 6.2% of the outstanding accounts receivable wrade balance at
July 31, 2007. Receivables are from major corporations or are supported by letters of credit. We maintain
reserves for potential credit losses and such losses have been immaterial. Accounts payable in currencies other
than U.S. dollars comprise 9.6% of the outstanding accounts payable balance at Juty 31, 2007.

Based on a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in foreign currency exchange rates, the potential losses in
future earnings, fair value of risk-sensitive financial instruments, and cash flows are immaterial, although the
actual effects may differ materially from the hypothetical analysis.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s $27.2 million Convertible Subordinated Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 4.25%, and
therefore changes in interest rates do not impact the Company’s interest expense on this debt. The Company paid
the $27.2 million of Convertible Subordinated Notes in full on August 15, 2007. However, the Company’s $20.0
million term loan bears interest at the lender’s variable prime rate minus 1.25%. The Company may also, from
time to time, have other outstanding short-term and long-term borrowings with variable interest rates. The
Company expects that a 19 change in interest rates would affect the Company’s interest expense by $0.2 million
per year.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

LTX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

July 31,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashand cashequivalents ........ . ... . ... i $ 63,302 $ 106,445
Marketable SECUMLIES . .. ... o i e e 35,236 87,776
Accounts receivable—trade, net of allowances of $1,250 and $1,303,

TESPECHVElY . . o e e 22,479 38,792
Accounts receivable—other, net of allowances of $290 and $88, respectively . .. .. 1,475 3,181
INVenIOMIES . . ... e e 27,102 29,847
Prepaid expense and other current assets . ..............c i 3,783 4,156

Total CUTTENL ASSEES . . . . o ot ettt e e e e e e e et e e e i 153,377 270,197
Property and equipment, net ... ... i e e e i 32,483 37,633
GoodWill . o e 14,762 14,762
Other intangible assets . ........ ... . e — 700
L0151 T 1 - 500 4,398
TOtAl ASSELS . . o\ttt sttt ae e e e e s $201,122  § 327,690
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current lizbilities:
Current portion of long-termdebt ... . ... .. .. L i $ 29322 $§ 70,071
Accounts payable ... ... e 15,334 20,995
Deferred revenues and customer advances . ............ccoiiiii i, 1,838 3,646
Other accrued eXpenses .. ... ... ... 19,605 32,198
Total current liabilities ........... ... i s 66,098 126,910
Long-term debt, less CUTeNt POTHON .. ..ottt ittt e ia e rae e e cnn 17,900 71,620
Long-term liabilities other ......... ... ... . i i e i 4,016 5,521
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.05 par value:
200,000,000 shares authorized; 62,444,947 and 62,006,421 shares issued and
outstanding, reSpectively . ... ... i e e 3,123 3,101
Additional paid-incapital .. ...... ... . e e 568,966 563,959
Accumulated other comprehensive l0ss .. ... ... ... L i e (840) (1,946)
Accumulated defiCit ... e e e e (458,141) (447 .475)
Total stockholders’ equity ......... ... .. .. . i 113,108 117,639 !
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity ............. ... . ... . oo $ 201,122 § 327,690 ;
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LTX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005

Net product Sales . ... ...t e i i e e e $118,317 $183,290 $ 103,026
Netservice sales ... ......... ittt 29,322 33,213 31,505
Netsales ...t e 147,639 216,503 134,531
Cost of sales (includes stock-based compensation expense of $107 for FY07,

$161 for FY06and $0for FYOS) ... .. .. . .. i 77441 109,975 90,806
Inventory related provision . ............ ... .. .. .. .. 4,175 221 47,457
Gross Profit {loSS) ... ..o i e e 66,023 106,307 (3,732)

Engineering and product development expenses (includes stock-based

compensation expense of $1,098 for FY(7, $1,049 for FY06 and $0 for

FYOS) o e 50,044
Selling, general and administrative expenses (includes stock-based

compensation expense of $2,854 for FY07; $3,463 for FY06 and 30 for

53,807 66,302

31,135 29,366

6,282 31,726

15,083  (131,126)

(8,956) (6,832)
6,114 5,232

FYOS) 26,770
Reorganization costs (credit) (includes stock-based compensation expense of
$0 for FY07, $334 for FY06 and $0 for FYO05) ...................... 377
Income (loss) fromoperations . ........... ... ... ... .. ... .. ..... (10,414)
Other income (expense):
INtEIESt EXPENSE . ..o v vttt ettt et e et (4.909)
Investmentincome ....... ... ... .. i 4,657
Net income (JOSS) .o v vttt ettt e e e e e $(10,666)

$ 12,241 $(132,726)

Net income (loss) per share:
BasiC .. $ 017

$ 020 § (217)

DAluted . oo e $ (0.17

Weighted-average common shares used in computing net income (loss) per
share:
Basic .. 62,130

Comprehensive income:

s 020 s @17

61,684 61,144
62,207 61,144

$ 12,241 3$(132,726)
(11) (1,457
(372) —

Netincome (1088) .. ... . i i e et e $(10,666)
Unrealized gain/(loss) on marketable securities ........................ 977
Pension liability gain/(loss) . ........ ... it i 902
Comprehensive income (J088) . .. ... vttt $ (8,787)

$ 11,858 $(134,183)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LTX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Paid -In  Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholder’s
Shares Amount  Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity

Balance at July 31,2004 ............ 60,903,163 $3,045 $555,447 3 (106)  $(326,990) $ 231,396
Exercise of stock options ........... 196,169 11 264 —_ -— 275
StepTech escrow share release ....... 144,062 7 1,092 — — 1,099
Issuance of shares under employees’

stock purchase plan and other ... . .. 288,486 14 1,389 — — 1,403
Unrealized loss on marketable

Securities ........o0 v iieei .. — — — (1,457 — (1,457
Netloss .........c...ooiiin... — — — — (132,726)  (132,726)
Balance at July 31,2005 ............ 61,531,881 3,077 558,192 (1,563) (459,716) 99,990
Exercise of siock options ........... 188,785 10 669 — — 679
Vesting of stock based awards ....... 163,874 8 4,543 —_ — 4,551
Issuance of shares under employees’

stock purchase plan and other . . .. .. 121,881 6 355 — — 561
Unrealized loss on marketable

SECUrHies . ... vvinit e — — — (11 — (1
Comprehensive loss of minimum

pension liability ................ — _ — (372) — (372)
Netincome ...................... — — — — 12,241 12,241
Balance at July 31,2006 ............ 62,006,421 3,101 563,959 (1,946) (447.475) 117,639
Exercise of stock options . .......... 144,350 8 601 — — 609
Vesting of stock based awards ......, 154,915 7 3,834 — — 3,841
Issuance of shares under employees’

stock purchase plan and other . . .. .. 139,261 7 572 — — 579
Unrealized gain on marketable

securities .......... ...l — — — 977 — 977
Comprehensive gain of minimum

pension liability ................ — — — 902 — 902
Cumulative adjustment for SFAS No.

158 transition .................. — — — (773) — (773)
Netloss ..., — — —_ —_ (10,666) (10,666)
Balance at July 31,2007 ............ 62,444,947 $3,123 $568,966 $ (840)  $(458,141) $ 113,108

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial starements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
NetINCOmE (J05S) .ottt e e e e $(10,666) $ 12241 $(132,726)
Add (deduct) non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization . ............ ... .. .......... 13,867 14,403 18,494
Non-cash restructuring charges ......... ... ... ... .. ..... 377) 195 18,058
Charge for inventory related provision . .. .................... 4,175 221 47,457
Stock-based compensation ........... ... . iiiiiee . 4,059 5,007 —
[ 1471 411 201 {1,493)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounis receivable ... ... ... e 18,083  (16,678) 19,286
IOV enOTIES . . . e {1,409) 13,149 (19,354)
Prepaidexpenses . . ... ... ... i 1,321 878 4905
T AS5E1S . .. o 2,317 622 (337
Accountspayable .. ... ... .. ... i (5,680} {6,947) (9,570)
AcCCIUed EXPENSES .. ... it it i e (12,704) (207 5,237
Deferred revenues and customer advances .. ......... ... ... .. ... .. (2,404) {651) {5,4306)
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ............. ... ccouuin. .. 10,993 22,434 (55,479)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Expenditures for property and equipment ........................ (8,399) (6,743)  (11,616)
Purchases of marketable securities ............. .. oot irennnnninn — (49,747) (112,890)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities .. ..................... 53,517 84,165 138,830
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ..............., ..... 45,118 27,675 14,324
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from stock pians:
Employees’ stock purchaseplan .. ......... ... ... ... ... .. 579 561 1,403
Exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock units . . . . 389 679 275
Payment of short-termdebt . .. ... ... ... . . . e {74,868 (602) (217)
Proceeds fromterm 1oan .. ... .ot e 20,000 — 60,000
Payments of long-termdebt ...... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ..., (45,601} — (60,057)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..................... (99,501) 638 1,404
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ............................. 247 429 (92)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . .................. (43,143) 51,176 (39,843)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year ........................ 106,445 55,269 95,112
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . ............................ $ 63,302 $106,445 $ 55,269
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year forinterest . .. ... ... ... ... ... vveii..e. $ 6293 § 7822 § 7431

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. THE COMPANY

LTX Corporation (“LTX” or the “Company”) designs, manufactures, and markets automatic semiconductor
test equipment. Semiconductor designers and manufacturers worldwide use semiconductor test equipment to test
devices at different stages during the manufacturing process. These devices are incorporated in a wide range of
products, including mobile internet equipment such as wireless access points and interfaces, broadband access
products such as cable modems and DSL modems, personal communication products such as cell phones and
personal digital assistants, consumer products such as televisions, videogame systems, digital cameras and
automobile electronics, and for power managernent in portable and automotive electronics. The Company also
sells hardware and software support and maintenance services for its test systems. The Company is
headquartered, and has development and manufacturing facilities, in Norwood, Massachuseits, a development
facility in San Jose, California, and worldwide sales and service facilities to support its customer base.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
Certain reclassifications have been made to previously reported financial data to conform to the 2007
presentation.

Preparation of Financial Statements and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared by the Company, and reflect all adjustments,
which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for fair presentation. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the
reporting periods.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are remeasured in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”. The Company’s
functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, the Company’s foreign subsidiaries remeasure monetary
assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates while non-monetary items are remeasured at historical rates.
Income and expense accounts are remeasured at the average rates in effect during the year, except for sales, cost
of sales and depreciation, which are primarily remeasured at historical rates. Net realized gains or losses resulting
from foreign currency re-measurement and transaction gains or losses were a loss of $388,000, a loss of
$258,000 and a gain of $17,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and are included in the consolidated
results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue based on guidance provided in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104,
{“SAB 104, “Revenue Recognition” and EITF No. 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables™.
The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered, the seller’s price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Revenue related to equipment sales is recognized when: (a} we have a written sales agreement; (b} delivery
has occurred; (c) the price is fixed or determinable; (d) collectibility is reasonably assured; (e) the product
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delivered is standard product with historically demonstrated acceptance; and (f) there is no unique customer
acceptance provision or payment tied to acceptance or an undelivered element significant to the functionality of
the system. Generally, payment terms are time based afier product shipment. Certain sales include payment terms
tied to customer accepiance. If a portion of the payment is linked to product acceptance, which is 20% or less, the
revenue is deferred on only the percentage holdback until payment is received or written evidence of acceptance
is delivered to the Company. If the portion of the holdback is greater than 20%, the full value of the equipment is
deferred until payment is received or written evidence of acceptance is delivered to the Company. When sates to
a customer involve multiple elements, revenue is recognized on the delivered element provided that (1) the
undelivered element is a proven technology, (2) there is a history of acceptance on the product with the customer,
(3) the undelivered element is not essential to the customer’s application, (4) the delivered item(s) has value to
the customer on a stand-alone basis, (5) objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered
item(s) exists, (6) if the arrangement included a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s), delivery
or performance of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of the
Company, and (7) if objective and reliable evidence of fair value exists for all units of accounting in the
arrangement, the arrangement consideration is allocated based on the relative fair values of each unit of
accounting. If the fair value of a delivered item is unknown, but the fair value of undelivered items are known,
the residual method is used for allocating arrangement consideration which requires discounts in the sales value
of the entire arrangement to be recognized in connection with the sale of the delivered items only. Revenue
related to spare parts is recognized on shipment. Revenue related to maintenance and service contracts is
recognized ratably over the duration of the contracts.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for potential credit losses based upon assessment of the
expected collectibility of all accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed periodically to
assess the adequacy of the allowances. In any circumstances in which the Company is aware of a customer’s
inability to meet its financial obligations, a certain percentage of the accounts receivable balance is provided for
as an allowance, which is based on the age of the receivables, the circumstances surrounding the customer’s
financial situation and historical experience. If circumstances change, and the financial condition of customers is
adversely affected resulting in their inability to meet their financial obligations 1o the Company additional
allowances may be recorded.

Engineering and Product Development Costs

The Company expenses all engineering, research and developmeni costs as incurred. Expenses subject to
capitalization in accordance with the SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software To Be Sold,
Leased or Otherwise Marketed”, refating to certain software development costs, were insignificant.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations.
Shipping and handling costs were $0.8 million, $0.9 million, and $0.8 million for fiscal years July 31, 2007,
2006, and 2003, respectively. These costs, when included in the sales price charged for products, are recognized
in net sales.

Deferred Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes using the asset and liability method. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial

39




LTX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective income tax bases, and operating
loss and tax credit carry forwards. The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements contain certain deferred
tax assets which have arisen primarily as a result of operating losses, as well as other temporary differences
between financial and tax accounting. SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes”, requires the Company to
establish a valuation allowance if the likelihood of realization of the deferred tax assets is reduced based on an
evaluation of objective verifiable evidence. Significant management judgment is required in determining the
Company’s provision of income taxes, the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation
allowance recorded against those net deferred at assets. The Company revaluates the weight of all available
evidence to determine whether it is more likely than not that some portion or ali of the net deferred income tax
assets will not be realized.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has five active stock option plans: the 2004 Stock Plan (“2004 Plan™), the 2001 Stock Plan
(“2001 Plan™), the 1999 Stock Plan (1999 Plan™), the 1995 LTX (Europe) Ltd. Approved Stock Option Plan
(*“U.K. Plan™) and, in addition, the Company assumed the StepTech, Inc. Stock Option Plan (the “STI 2000
Plan™) as part of its acquisition of StepTech. The Company can only grant options from the 2004 Plan. Under the
terms of the 2004 Plan, any unused shares of Common Stock as a result of termination, surrender, cancellation or
forfeiture of options from the 2001 Plan and the 1999 Plan will be available for grant of equity awards under the
2004 Plan. The 2004 Plan provides for the granting of options to employees to purchase shares of common stock
at not less than 100% of the fair market value at the date of grant. The 2004 Plan also provides for the granting of
options to an employee, director or consultant of the Company or its subsidiaries to purchase shares of common
stock at prices to be determined by the Board of Directors and also allows both restricted stock awards and stock
awards. Options under this plan are exercisable over vesting periods, which typically have been three to four
years from the date of grant. The general term of stock options is ten years. The Company policy of providing
shares is to either buy shares in the open market or issue new shares.

Effective August 1, 2005, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123
(revised 2004), “Share Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R™). Under SFAS No. 123R, the Company is required to
recognize, as expense, the estimated fair value of all share-based payments to employees. In accordance with this
standard, the Company has elected to recognize the compensation cost of all service based awards on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period of the award. Performance based awards are recognized ratably for each vesting
tranche. For the year ended July 31, 2007 the Company recorded expense of approximately $4.1 million. As of
July 31, 2007, there is approximately $5.6 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to share-based
payments to employees that will be recognized over the next 16 quarters.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R under the modified prospective method. Under this method, the
Company recognized compensation cost for all share-based payments to employees based on the grant date
estimate of fair value for those awards, beginning on August I, 2005. Options granted prior to August 1, 2005
were valued using a binomial Black-Scholes model at the date of grant. Options granted subsequent to the
adoption of SFAS No. 123R were valued using a trinomial lattice model.

The Company chose a trinomial lattice model upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R versus the binomial Black-
Scholes method used for the periods prior to the adoptions of SFAS No. 123R for the following reasons: 1) the
trinomial lattice supports a changing volatility assumption with little computation complexity and 2) the
trinomial lattice accounts for changing employee behavior as the stock price changes, as behavior is solely
represented by a time component. The use of a lattice model captures the observed pattern of increasing rates of
exercise as the stock price increases. The Black-Scholes model does not contain the interaction among economic
and behavioral assumptions. The volatility assumption used in our trinomial lattice model uses a term structure of
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expected volatilities reflecting a 1-to-10 year average volatility based on historical stock prices. Our volatility
assumption is redeveloped quarterly and calculated using the stock price history ending on the last day of the
prior quarter. The forfeiture assumption is based on our historical employee behavior over the last 15 years,
which is largely driven by stock price increase.

Weighted-average assumptions used in determining fair value of option grants for 2006 and 2005. There
have been no option grants for the year ended July 31, 2007,

2006 (1) 2005 (2)
Volalility ... o e 54 - 86% 80%
Dividendyield ....... ... ... i i, 0% 0%
Risk-free interestrate ... ... .. ... . . . .. . i i 3.84-475% 4.11%
Expected life of options . . ......... ... ... .. .. o 7.11 =721 years  7.18 years

(1) Assumptions used in trinomial lattice option-pricing model valuation,
{2) Assumptions used in Black-Scholes valuation.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option-pricing models require the
input of highly subjective assumptions. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide
a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

For periods prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the Company had elected to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, (APB 25) and related
interpretations in accounting for its employee stock option and stock purchase plans. No stock-based employee
compensation is reflected in net income (loss), as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provision of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee
compensation:

Year ended July 31, 2005
(in thousands except per share}

Net income (loss):
Asrteported ... ... e $(132,726)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based method for

all awards, net of related tax effects, pro forma . ...... 26,090
Proforma ......... ... i $(158.816)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic
Asteported ... ... § @1
Proforma ....... ... . . . . $  (2.60)
Diluted
Asteported . ... e $ @21
Proforma ....... ... .ot $ (260
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Product Warranty Costs

Qur products are sold with warranty provisions that require us to remedy deficiencies in quality or
performance of our products over a specified period of time at no cost to our customers. Our policy is to establish
warranty reserves at levels that represent our estimate of the costs that will be incurred to fulfill those warranty
requirements at the time that revenue is recognized. ‘

The following table shows the change in the product warranty liability, as required by FASB Interpretation
No. (FIN) 45, “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2007 and 2006:

(in thousands)
Product Warranty Activity 2007 2006
Balance at beginning of period ... ... Lo $3543  $2,543
Warranty expenditures for current period ................ .. (3,026) (3,621
Changes in liability related to pre-existing warranties .............. (342) —
Provision for warranty costs inthe pertod ... .................... 2,144 4,621
Balance atendofperiod ........ . ... . . i $ 1,819 §3,543

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of two components, net income (loss) and other comprehensive
income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) consists of unrealized gains and losses on the Company’s
marketable securities and the effects of the minimum pension liability.

The following table shows the cumulative components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the fiscal
years ended July 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

{in thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Unrealized gain/(foss) on securities .. ... .. i $(597) $(1,574) $(1,563)
Pension liability gain/(loss) . ... e (243 (372) —
TOtAl . .t e e e e e e e e e $(840) $(1,946) 5(1,563)

Net Income {Loss} per Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted income
(loss) per common share reflects the maximum dilution that would have resulted from the assumed exercise and
share repurchase related to dilutive stock options and is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted
average number of common shares and all dilutive securities outstanding.
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Reconciliation between basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)
Netincome (LOSS) ..o vttt et e e e e $(10,666) $12,241 $(132,726)
Basic EPS
Basiccommonshares .......... . ... e 62,130 61,684 61,144
Basic EPS . ... e e $ 017 % 020 8 (217
Diluted EPS
Basic common Shares . .. ... .ttt e 62,130 61,684 61,144
Plus: impact of stock optionsand warrants .. ................. ..., .. — 523 —
Diluted common shares . ........... ...ttt 62,130 62,207 61,144
Diluted BEPS ... e e $ 013 020 8% (217

Options to purchase 6,669,336, 7,146,337, and 8,077,136 of common stock were outstanding at July 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively, but were not included in the calculation of diluted shares because the effect of
including the options would have been anti-dilutive. These options could be dilutive in the future. The calculation
of diluted net income (loss) per share excludes 653,000, 721,000 and 0 RSUs at July 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, in accordance with the contingently issuable shares guidance of SFAS No. 128, “Eamings Per
Share”. :

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to cash and that have
original maturity dates of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily
of repurchase agreements and commercial paper. Marketable securities consist primarily of debt securities that
are classified as available-for-sale, in accordance with the SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities” (“SFAS No. 115™). Securities available for sale include corporate and
governmental obligations with various contractual maturity dates some of which are greater than one year. The
Company considers the securities to be liquid and convertible to cash within 30 days. The Company has the
ability and intent, if necessary, to liquidate any security that the Company holds to fund operations over the next
twelve months and as such has classified these securities as short-term. Governmental obligations include U.S.
Government, State, Municipal and Federal Agency securities.

The market value and maturities of the Company’s marketable securities are as follows:

Total Amount
(in thousands)
July 31, 2007
Dueinless than one year . ... ... ...\ .eeiirriiireernnreeeens, $12,391
Dueinlto3years .. .. ... .. i e 19,124
Duein3to S years ..ottt it e 3721
DueinStol0years ... ... —
Dueingreaterthan 10years .............. ... coiiiviiiieaann, —
8 T $35,236
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The market value and amortized cost of marketable securities are as follows:

Market Amortized
Value Cost

(in thousands)

July 31, 2007

COTPOTALE ..\ttt e ittt ieae e $29.873  $30,376
L@ 07 y o1 17=1 5| S PO 5,363 5,457
$35,236  $35,833

July 31, 2006
COTPOTALE .« . e e e et ee e nnee $57,522  $58,401
GOVEITIINIENE . . . oottt e ettt i e e e e i aae s 30,254 30,947

$87,776  $89,348

Gross unrealized losses were $0.6 million in fiscal 2007 and $1.6 million in fiscal 2006. The realized
profits, tosses and interest are included in the investment income in the Statements of Operations. Unrealized
gains and losses are reflected as a separate component of comprehensive income and are included in
Stockholders’ Equity. The gross unrealized losses were primarily a result of rising interest rates. The Company
evaluates its portfolio for impairment based on certain factors including, credit quality, structure of the security
and the ability to hold the security to maturity.

The following table contains marketable securities and related unrealized losses as of July 31, 2007:

Market Unrealized

(in thousands) Value loss
Securities < 12 months unrealized 10ss .. ..... ... . it $ 2,381 $ (12)
Securities > 12 months unrealized loss .. .. ... .. .. i i 32,770 (585)
Securities with unrealized gains . ....... ... o i i 85 —
] 1 R $35,236 $(597)

The following interest income and realized gains and losses from sales of marketable securities are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
INIETESLIMCOITIE © . v o v e et e e e e e e et e et e ettt et e et aae e $2,617 $5,619 $4,807
Realized (loss) gain from sales of available-for-sale securities ................... (22) (94) —

$2,595 $5,525 $4,807

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, requires that disclosure be made of
estimates of the fair value of financial instruments. The carrying amounts of certain of the Company’s financial
instruments, including cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
approximate fair value due to their short maturities. In accordance with SFAS No. 115, marketable securities
classified as available for sale are all debt securities and are recorded at fair value based upon quoted market prices.
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The fair value of the Company’s notes payable and long-term liabilities is estimated based on quoted market prices
for the same or similar issues or on current rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities.

As of July 31, 2007, the estimated fair value of the Company’s convertible subordinated notes was
approximately $27.2 million compared to the carrying value of $27.2 million. The estimated fair value of the
convertible subordinated notes is based on the quated market price of the notes on July 31, 2007. The $27.2
million was due and paid in full at par value on August 15, 2007.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Revenue from our top ten customers accounted for 79%, 82%, and 77% of total revenues in fiscal 2007,
2006, and 2005, respectively. Accounts receivable from these customers amounted to approximately $17.6
million and $26.2 million at July 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Sales to customers outside the United States
were $98.8 million, or 67% of net sales in fiscal 2007, $127.6 million, or 59% of net sales in fiscal 2006, $93.3
million, or 69% of net sales, in fiscal 2005.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, are cash
equivalents, marketable securities and accounts receivable. All of the Company’s cash equivalents and
marketable securities are maintained by major financial institutions. The Company periodically reviews these
investments to evaluate and minimize credit risk. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable
is limited to certain customers to whom the Company makes substantial sales. To reduce risk, the Company
routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers. The Company does not require collateral, although the
Company does obtain a letter of credit on sales to certain foreign customers. Write-offs related to accounts
receivable have been within management’s expectations.

Inventories

Inveniories are stated at the lower of cost or market, determined on the first-in, first-out {(“FIFO”) method,
and include materials, labor and manufacturing overhead. The components of inventories are as follows:

As of July 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
Material and purchased components . .................ccoiiiiiiiiiiiia, $20,317  $20,597
WOrK-IN-ProCess .. ...t e e 529 5,132
Finished goods ... ... i 6,256 4,118

$27,102  $29,847

The Company establishes inventory reserves when conditions exist that suggest inventory may be in excess
of anticipated demand or is obsolete based upon our assumptions about future demand for products or market
conditions. The Company regularly evaluates the ability to realize the value of inventory based on a combination
of factors including the following: forecasted sales or usage, estimated preduct end of life dates, estimated
current and future market value and new product introductions. Purchasing and aliernative usage options are also
explored to mitigate inventory exposure. When recorded, reserves are intended to reduce the carrying value of
inventory to its net realizable value. As of July 31, 2007 and 2006, inventory is stated net of inventory reserves of
$41.4 million and $46.5 million, respectively. If actual demand for products deteriorates or market conditions are
less favorable than those that projected additional inventory reserves may be required. Such reserves are not
reversed until the related inventory is sold or otherwise disposed. During fisca! year 2007, the Company utilized
$10.8 million of reserves related to the disposal or sale of previously reserved items.

45




LTX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Of the $27.1 million inventory balance at July 31, 2007, $9.2 million consists of “last time buy” custom
components for Fusion HFi, $12.1 million consists of materials and components to support current requirements
for Fusion HFi and X-Series, $5.3 million consists of evaluation inventory at customers and $0.5 million consists
of inventory held in deferred revenue pending product acceptance. If actual demand for products deteriorates or
market conditions are less favorable than those that projected additional inventory reserves may be required. |

For the quarter ended April 30, 2007, the Company recorded a $4.2 million inventory related provision
related to the Fusion HFi product line. The provision was required as a result of two major factors that
materialized during the quarter. First, the Company’s assessment of its Fusion HFi customers demand for HFi
due to low demand in the markets they serve and second, the projected impact from customers who have
increased adoption of the X-Series platform by transferring test capacity from HFi to a lower cost to test X-Series
alternative. The favorable performance/price characteristics of the X-Series testers has enabled customers to
transition certain devices currently being tested on the Fusion HFi platform to the X-Series testers. This is
expected to result in increased available HFi capacity at existing customers and will likely reduce HFi purchases
in the future.

There were $4.4 million and $2.5 million in sales of previously written off inventory for the twelve months
ended July 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The $4.4 million and $2.5 million recorded for the twelve months
ended July 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively represents the gross cash received from the customer. The net
incremental gross margin and net income effect for these transactions of $1.0 million and $1.1 million for the
twelve months ended July 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, did not have a significant impact on operating
margins.

Property and Equipment |

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. The Company provides for depreciation and amortization on the
straight-line method. Charges are made to operating expenses in amounts that are sufficient to amortize the cost
of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Machinery, equipment and internally manufactured systems
include spare parts used for service and LTX test systems used for testing components, engineering and
applications development. Internally manufactured equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated over 3 to 7
years. Repairs and maintenance costs that do not extend the lives of property and equipment are expensed as
incurred. Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

As of July 31, Depreciable Life in
. 2007 .. 2006 Years

' (in thousands)
Machinery, equipment and internally manufactured systems . ...... $ 98,827 $ 99,520 3-7
Office furniture and equipment .. ......... ... ... 3,035 4,531 37
Leaschold improvements .......... ...t iiinanns 8,659 8,358 10 or term of lease

110,521 112,409

Accumulated depreciation and amortization . . .................. (78,037 (74,776)

$ 32,483 $ 37,633

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Other Than Goodwill

On an on-going basis, management reviews the value and period of amortization or depreciation of long-
lived assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”,
the Company reviews whether impairment losses exist on long-lived assets when indicators of impairment are
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present. During this review, the Company reevaluates the significant assumptions used in determining the
original cost of long-lived assets. Although the assumptions may vary, they generally include revenue growth,
operating results, cash flows and other indicators of value. Management then determines whether there has been
a permanent impairment of the value of long-lived assets based upon events or circumstances that have occurred
since acquisition. The extent of the impairment amount recognized is based upon a determination of the impaired
asset’s fair value.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The Company has adopted the provisions of Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”,
which requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. Intangible assets
with a definitive useful life are amortized over their estimated useful life. Assets recorded in these categories are
tested for impairment at least annually or when a change in circumstances may result in future impairment.
Identified intangible assets are recorded at historical cost. These assets acquired in an acquisition, including
purchased research and development, are recorded under the purchase method of accounting. Assets acquired in
an acquisition are recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. Management uses a discounted !
cash flow analysis which requires that cenain assumptions and estimates be made regarding industry economic
factors and future profitability of the acquired business to assess the need for an impairment charge. If the
carrying value of the asset is in excess of the present value of the expected future cash flows, the carrying value
is written down to fair value in the period identified.

Goodwill totaling $14.8 million at July 31, 2007 and July 31, 2006, represents the excess of acquisition
costs over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired from StepTech, Inc. (“StepTech™) on June 10, 2003,
Since the Company operates as a single reporting and under SFAS No. 142, goodwill is measured based on the
Company’s enterprise value, or more frequently annually if indicators of impairment develop.

Other intangible assets consisted of core technology and amounted to the following at:

Core Technology Accumulated Net Estimated
(In thousands) Gross Intangible  Amortization  Intangible Asset  Useful Life
July 31,2007 ... ..o $2.800 $2,800 $— 4 years
July 31,2006 ... ... ... $2,800 $2,100 $700 4 years

Amortization expense for each of the years ended July 31, 2007 and 2006 was $700,000. The aggregate
amortization expense for the next year will be $0.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN No. 48”), *‘Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. FIN No. 48
clarifies the application of SFAS No. 109 by defining criteria that an individual tax position must meet for any
part of the benefit of that position to be recognized in the financial statements. Additionally, FIN No. 48 provides
guidance on the measurement, de-recognition, classification and disclosure of tax positions along with the
accounting for the related interest and penalties. The provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for the fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as
an adjustment to opening retained earnings. The Company is required to adopt FIN No. 48 for our fiscal year
beginning August 1, 2007. The Company believes that the adoption of FIN No. 48 will not have a material
impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements,
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577). SFAS
No. 157 provides guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard also responds to
investors’ requests for more information about (1) the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities at
fair value, (2) the information used to measure fair value, and (3) the effect that fair-value measurements have on
eamnings. SFAS No, 157 will apply whenever another standard requires (or permits) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value to any new circumstances. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 135, 2007. The
Company will adopt this requirement for the fiscal year beginning August 1, 2008. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” (“SFAS No. 158”), an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R). SFAS No. 158 represents the completion of the first phase in the
FASRB’s postretirement benefits accounting project and requires an entity to recognize in its statement of
financial position an asset for a defined benefit postretirement plan’s over-funded status or a liability for a plan’s
under-funded status, measure a defined benefit postretirement plan’s assets and obligations that determine its
funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year, and recognize changes in the funded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan in comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. The requirement to
recognize the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and the disclosure requirements are effective
for fiscal years ended after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations
as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 2008, The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 as of July 31, 2007. The adoption of SFAS
No. 158 impacied the Company’s balance sheet at July 31, 2007 as follows: (i) a decrease in other intangible
assets of $773,000 and (ii) an increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss of $773,000. The adoption of
SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income for the year ended July 31, 2007 or for any prior period presented. SFAS No. 158 did not have a material
impact to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 1597). SFAS No. 159 provides companies
with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The Standard’s objective is to reduce
both complexity in accounting for financial instruments and the volatility in earnings caused by measuring
related assets and liabilities differently. This Siatement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal
year beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of the previous fiscal
year provided that the entity makes that choice in the first 120 days of that fiscal year and also elects to apply the
provisions of SFAS No. 157. The Company will adopt this requirement for the fiscal year beginning August 1,
2008. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on
its financial statements.
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3. OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES
Other accrued expenses consisted of the following at July 31, 2007 and July 31, 2006:

(in thousands)
2007 2006
Accrued compensation . ...... ... ... e $ 4823 § 8450
Accrued income and 10Cal TAXES .. ..ot vttt e 5,596 5,177
WaITANLY TESEIVE .. ..\ttt ittt ittt ittt ie et ans 1,819 3,543
Accrued TeStTUCIUNING . .. ..o e e 2,223 7,001
Accrued INTEISt . . . ... e e 2,280 3,664
Other accrued EXPenSES . . ...ttt i e e 2,864 4,363

$19,605  $32,198

4. LONG-TERM DERT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

As of July 31,
(in thousands)
2007 2006
Convertible subordinated notes ......... . ... .. .. it i $27,220 § 88,287
Bank lerm loan . .., . . .. i e e e 20,000 59,400
Lease purchase obligations, net of deferred interest ..................... 2 4
41,222 147,691
Less: Curment portion ............. .ttt (29,322) (70,071)

$17.900 $ 77,620

On August 8, 2001, the Company received net proceeds of $145.2 million from a private placement of $150
million, 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes (“the Notes™) due 2006. The private placement was effected
through a Rule 144A offering to qualified institutional buyers. Interest on the Notes is payable on February 15
and August 15 of each year, commencing February 15, 2002. The Notes are convertible into shares of the
Company’s common stock at any time prior to the close of business on August 15, 2006, unless previously
redeemed, at a conversion price of $29.04 per share, subject to certain adjustments. Prior to August 19, 2004, the
Company could have redeemed any of the Notes at a certain redemption price, plus accrued interest, if the
closing price of the common stock exceeded 150% of the conversion price for at least 20 trading days in any
consecutive 30-day trading period and certain other conditions are satisfied. On or after August 19, 2004, the
Company could have redeemed any of the Notes at designated redemption prices, plus accrued interest. The
Notes are unsecured and subordinated in right of payment in full to all existing and future senior indebtedness of
the Company. Expenses associated with the offering of approximately $4.8 mitlion are being amortized using the
straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the term of the Notes. The stated
interest rate is 4.25% and the effective rate is 4.39% due to the amortization of capitalized costs associated with
the offering. During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2005, the Company repurchased $61.7 million of the cutstanding
principal balance. On November 14, 2003, the Company refinanced this debt by exchanging $27.2 million in
aggregate principal amount of existing notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest on the outstanding notes for an
equal principal amount of new notes due August 2007 with an interest rate of 4.25%. The principle balance of
these notes of $27.2 million was paid in full on August 15, 2007.
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On June 3, 2005, the Company closed a $60.0 million term loan with a commercial lender (the “2005 Loan
Agreement”). The loan had a five year term. Interest was at the lender’s variable prime rate and was payable
monthly. The Company entered into a new Loan and Security Agreement (the “2006 Loan Agreement™), dated as
of December 7, 2006, with Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB™) to modify the existing $60.0 million term loan. Under
the terms of the 2006 Loan Agreement, LTX borrowed $20.0 million under a term loan at an interest rate of
prime minus 1.25% with interest-only payable during the first 12 months. The loan is secured by all assets of the
Company located in the United States. Principal of this term loan is repayable over four years as follows:

= months 13 to 24: $300,000.00 per month
+  months 25 to 36: $600,000.00 per month
*  months 37 to 48; $766,666.67 per month

The financing arrangement under the 2006 Loan Agreement also provides LTX with a $30.0 million
revolving credit facility. No amount was outstanding under the revolving credit facility as of July 31, 2007.

In connection with the 2006 Loan Agreement, LTX has terminated the 2005 Loan Agreement and has repaid
all outstanding amounts under the 2005 Loan Agreement. The net effect of this transaction reduced existing cash
on hand by approximately $36.0 million in the quarter ended January 31, 2007.

The Company has a second credit facility with another lender for a revolving credit line of $5.0 million.
This facility is secured by cash and marketable securities. This line of credit secures obligations of operating
leases and existing stand-by letters of credit. The line has $2.8 million available as of July 31, 2007,

5. INCOME TAXES

Reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory rate to the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Year ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
U.S. Federal statutory rate . ... ... ... oot it et i i i 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Change in valuation ailowance/utilization of net operating loss carry forwards .......... (35.0) (35.0) (35.0»
Bl ective (K TAE . . . .. ittt et e e e 0.0% 00% 0.0%

The temporary differences and carry forwards that created the deferred tax assets and (liabilities) as of
July 31, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:

As of July 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carry forwards . . ......... ... . il $ 156,473  § 153,201
Tax credits . ... ... e e 45,007 41,939
Inventory valuation T8SEIVES . .. ..ot vi v e nr e iae e 15,765 17,789
Deferred revenue ... ...t i e e 117 337
L0 115 7=3 OO U 12,511 10,973

Total deferred tax assets, HEL ... ittt i e e e e e 229 873 224,239
Valualion allowance .. ...... .. . et (229,873) (224,239

Net deferred taX SSEIS . v v vttt s et e e et e et aaneens $ — 3 —
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Compliance with SFAS No. 109 requires the Company to periodically evaluate the necessity of establishing
or increasing a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets depending on whether it is more likely than not that a
related benefit will be realized in future periods. Because of the cumulative loss position of the Company at
July 31, 2002 and the uncertainty of the timing of profitability in future periods, the Company increased its
valuation allowance to 100% of net deferred tax assets in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002. At July 31, 2007,
the Company continues to maintain a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets. Included in the
valuation allowance is approximately $4.1 miltion related to certain NOL carryovers resulting from the exercise
of stock options, the benefit of which, when recognized, will be accounted for as a credit to additional paid in
capital rather than a reduction in income tax.

As of July 31, 2007, the Company had Federal net operating loss carry forwards of $428,008,000, which
expire in 2012 to 2027, and Federal tax credit carry forwards of $25,591,000, which expire from 2016 to 2021.
State tax credits and carry forwards of $19,415,000 at July 31, 2007 expire from 2007 to 2022. The Company
also has foreign NOLs of $950,000 in the United Kingdom and $2,500,000 in Japan.

In accordance with SFAS No. 109 and SFAS No. 5, Accounting For Contingencies, the Company
established reserves for tax contingencies that reflect a best estimate of the transactions and deductions that may
be unable to be sustained or that would be conceded as part of a broader tax settlement. The Company is
currently undergoing routine tax examinations by various state and foreign jurisdictions. Tax authorities
periodically challenge certain transactions and deductions we reported on our income tax returns. The Company
does not expect the outcome of these examinations, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material
adverse effect on the financial position, results from operations or cash flows of the Company.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN No. 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109", which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN No. 48 clarifies
the application of SFAS No. 109 by defining criteria that an individual tax position must meet for any part of the
benefit of that position to be recognized in the financial statements. Additionally, FIN No. 48 provides guidance
on the measurement, de-recognition, classification and disclosure of tax positions along with the accounting for
the related interest and penalties. The provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment
to opening retained earnings. The Company will be required to adopt FIN No. 48 for the fiscal year beginning
August 1, 2007. The Company believes that the adoption of FIN No. 48 will not have a material impact on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

6. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Public Offering

In January 2004, the Company filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 to register up to $250.0
million of common stock, debt securities and warrants. On February 19, 2004, an offering was closed pursuant to
the registration statement relating to the sale of 8,050,000 shares of common stock at $16.50 per share. The
offering included 1,050,000 shares sold as a result of the exercise, in full, by the underwriters of their option to
purchase additional shares of common stock. Gross proceeds from the stock offering totaled approximately
$132.8 million. Proceeds to LTX, net of $6.3 million in underwriters’ commissions and discounts and other
expenses, totaled approximately $126.5 million.

Rights Agreement

The Company has a Rights Agreement whereby each common stock shareholder has one common share
purchase right for each share of common stock held. The rights will become exercisable only if a person or group
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acquires 15% or more of the Company’s common stock or announces a tender offer that would result in
ownership of 15% or more of the common stock. Initially, each right will entitle a stockholder to buy one share
of common stock of the Company at a purchase price of $45.00 per share, subject to significant adjustment
depending on the occurrence thereafter of certain events. Before any person or group has acquired 15% or more
of the common stock of the Company, the rights are redeemable by the Board of Directors at $0.001 per right.
The rights expire on April 30, 2009 unless redeemed by the Company prior to that date.

Reserved Unissued Shares

At July 31, 2007, the Company had reserved 13,420,617 unissued shares of its common steck for possible
issuance under stock-based compensation plans and the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. At July 31,
2007, the Company has reserved 937,328 shares of its common stock for issuance relating to the Company’s
4,25% Convertible Subordinated Notes. On August 15, 2007, the Company paid the principle amount of $27.2
million and accrued interest of $1.9 million of the 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes, which reduced the
amount of shares reserved to zero.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Stock Option Plans

In connection with the Company’s Stock Option Plans, at July 31, 2007, 3,225,824 shares were subject to
future grant under the 2004 Plan and no shares were available for future grant under any of the other Company
Stock Option Plans.

The following is a summary of activities for the Company’s Stock Option Plans:

Stock Option Activity
2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average

Shares (1) Exercise Price Shares (1) Exercise Price Shares (1) Exercise Price

Options outstanding, beginning of

VEAT ..o 8,534,284 $ 917 10,723,005 $10.40 9,035,317 $11.46
Granted ....................... — — 169,500 3.81 2,151,225 5.75
Exercised . ..................... (144,350) 5.05 (188,785) 3.59 {78,285) 3.13
Forfeited ...................... (184,737) 7.84  (2,169436) 10.99 (385,252) 1024
Options outstanding, end of year ... 8,205,197 927 8,534,284 9.17 10,723,005 10.40
Options exercisable . ............. 7,687,983 10.45 7,147,159 10.75 8,600,755 11.69
Options available for grant ........ 3,225,824 3,860,839 3,206,432
Weighted average fair value of

options granted during year .. ... $§ 00 $ 2.68 $ 3.51

{1} Does not include 500,512 shares for employee stock purchase plan in 2007, 639,773 shares in 2006, and
761,654 shares in 2005.
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As of July 31, 2007, the status of the Company’s outstanding and exercisable options is as follows:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Average Number Average
Range of Exercise Price (§} Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price ($) Exercisable Exercise Price ($)

0.01 —4.63 870,413 5.2 $ 3.58 743,449 $ 354
4.64 - 9.25 3,158,356 53 6.84 2,768,106 7.04
9.26 - 13.88 3,198,975 4.6 12.76 3,198,975 12.76
13.89 — 18.50 682,453 35 15.40 682,453 15.40
18.51-23.13 244,000 3.6 21.09 244,000 21.09
23.14-27.75 16,000 4.6 26.20 16,000 26.20
27.76 - 32.38 1,000 39 28.34 1,000 28.34
32.39 -37.00 18,500 24 33.63 18,500 33.63
41,64 — 46,25 15,500 2.6 46.25 15,500 46.25
8.205,197 4.8 $10.11 7,687,983 $10.45

Our general practice has been to issue new shares. In fiscal 2005, the Company granted 533,750 options tied
to certain performance milestones. As of January 31, 2007, 100% of these options have vested as they have met
the performance milestones. During the quarter ended Janvary 31, 2006, the Company granted 983,600 restricted
stock units (“RSUs™). Of the 983,600 RSUs, vesting for 742,600 is tied to certain profit break-even milestones
for executives. The first milestone was achieved May 16, 2006, resulting in 185,650 shares vesting on May 16,
2006. The second vesting occurred on May 16, 2007, resulting in 167,650 vesting. The remaining executive
RSUs will vest annually over the next two years unless another performance milestone is achieved. The
remaining 241,000 RSUs are service vested for key employees over a four year period, including 60,250 shares
that vested on May 16, 2006, when the Company achieved a profit break-even milestone. The remaining shares
will vest annually over the next two years, unless another performance milestone is achieved. During the quarter
ended October 31, 2006, the Company granted 973,000 RSUs. Of the 973,000 RSUs, vesting for 721,000 is tied
to certain profit milestones for executives, The remaining 252,000 RSUs are service vested for key employees
and are eammed over a four year period. For the quarter ended January 31, 2007, 62,300 RSUs were granted to
directors to vest over three years, and 5,000 RSUs were granted to employees to vest over four years. For the
quarter ended April 30, 2007, 15,000 RSUs were granted to employees to vest over four years. For the quarter
ended July 31, 2007, 7,000 RSUs were granted to employees to vest over four years.

RSU Activity
2007 2006
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number of Grant-Date Number of Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
RSUs outstanding, beginning of year ............ 759,900 $4.50 — $—
Granted . ......... . i e 1,062,300 491 1,011,800 4.48
Vested ... e e (154,915) 4.51 (163,874) 4.44
Forfeited . ....... ... . .. .. . . i (139,950) 467 (88,026) 4.44
RSUs outstanding, end of year ................. 1,527,335 $4.77 759,900 $4.50

On June 7, 2005, the Board of Directors, upon recommendation of the Board’s Compensation Committee,
approved the accelerated vesting of certain unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock options held by employees,
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executive officers and non-employee directors with exercise prices greater than $7.50 per share. The closing sale
price of LTX’s common stock on the Nasdaq National Market on June 7, 2005 was $5.20. As a result of this vesting
acceleration, which became effective on June 7, 2005, options to purchase approximately 2.3 million shares of LTX’s
common stock that would otherwise have vested at various times within the nexi four years became fully vested.

The decision to accelerate these unvested options was made primarily to reduce compensation expense that
might be recorded in future periods following the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 123R on August 1, 2005.
Accelerating the vesting of these stock options reduced the Company’s aggregate compensation expense in future
periods by a total of approximately $10.4 million, before taxes, based upon value calculations using the Black-
Scholes methodology (approximately $6.2 million in fiscal year 2006, $4.1 million in fiscal year 2007, and $0.1
million in fiscal year 2008).

Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan

The Company instituted an employee stock purchase plan in 1993 (1993 ESPP”). Under the 1993 ESPP,
eligible employees may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation for the purchase of common stock of
the Company, subject to an annual limit of $25,000. The price paid for the commen stock is equal to 85% of the
fower of the fair market value of LTX's common stock on the first business day or the last business day of a
six-month offering period. The 1993 ESPP limits the number of shares that can be issued over the term of the
plan to 3,000,000 shares. In December 2003, the 1993 ESPP expired and at the annual meeting on December 10,
2003 the shareholders approved a new employee stock purchase plan (“2004 ESPP”). The 2004 ESPP provides
the same provisions as the 1993 ESPP and allows for the issuance of 1,200,000 shares of common stock to
eligible employees. In September 2005, the Company amended the 2004 ESPP to provide that the price paid for
the common stock is equal to 85% of the fair market value of LTX’s common stock on the last business day of a
six month offering period. In fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2003, shares issued under these employee stock
purchase plans were 139,261, 121,881 and 288,486, respectively.

Other Compensation Plans

The Company has established a Profit Sharing Bonus Plan, wherein a percentage of pretax profits are
distributed quarterly to all non-executive employees. Under the Profit Sharing Bonus Plan, the Company
recorded profit sharing expense for all eligible employees of approximately $0.2 million, $1.6 million, and $0.0
million, for fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The Company has an Executive Profit Sharing Plan based on certain profitability milestones. Employees
included in this plan are excluded from the Profit Sharing Bonus Plan. The Company expensed $0.0 million, $1.3
million, and $0.0 million for the fiscal years 2007, 2006, 2005 respectively.

The Company has a 401(k) Growth and Investment Program (“401(k) Plan”). Eligible employees may make
voluntary contributions to the 401(k) Plan through a salary reduction contract up to the statutory limit or 20% of
their annual compensation. The Company matches employees’ voluntary contributions, up to certain prescribed
limits. Company contributions vest at a rate of 20% per year. The Company suspended the match as of June of
fiscal year 2001. The Company match was reinstated beginning August 2005. The Company recorded related
expense of $0.8 million and $0.7 million for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2007 and July 31, 2006, respectively.

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan for its operation in the United Kingdom. The plan was
constituted in October 1981 to provide defined benefit pension and lump sum benefits, payable on retirement, for
employees of LTX(Europe) Limited, (“UK"). The plan has 71 participants of which 2 remain as active employee
members and 69 are non-active former employees but for whom benefits are preserved. The plan has been closed to all
new members since December 31, 2000. During fiscal 1998 LTX initiated a significant worldwide headcount
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reduction. This restructuring involved the termination of 28 of the then 71 UK pension plan participants. Additionally,
the Company announced the intent to divest its iPTest business in the UK in August 1998, and disclosed this in the
annual report on Form 10-K for fiscal 1998. The Company subsequently sold its iPTest subsidiary in the UK in fiscal
2000. These actions resulted in the termination of 19 of the then 43 active UK pension plan participants. The Company
has concluded that these actions met the requirements of paragraph 6 of SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for
Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Termination Benefits in fiscal 1998 and resulted in
a curtailment of this plan at that date. The plan was under-funded as of July 31, 2007 by $3.9 million. The Company
has recorded this liability as other long-term liabilities in the amount of $3.6 million and accrued short-term liabilities
of $0.3 million on the consolidated balance sheet as of July 31, 2007. Additionally, the Company has recorded a

$0.2 million accumulated other comprehensive gain in stockholders’ equity. The Company intends to make
contributions over a 9 year period in order to reach fully funded status. The Company does not anticipate significant
pension expense going forward from July 31, 2007. Factors that could impact the amount of expense recorded include
but are not limited to; 1) the rate of return on the assets invested or 2) the discount rate used to determine the net
present value of the future liabilities. The expected rate of return on assets is 6.0% and the discount rate is 5.7%. Cash
payments are projected to be approximately $0.3 million in fiscal 2008 and actual cash payments were $0.4 million in
fiscal 2007,

8. INDUSTRY AND GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates predominantly in one industry segment: the design, manufacture and marketing of
automated test equipment for the semiconductor industry that is used to test system-on-a-chip, digital, analog and
mixed signal integrated circuits.

In fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, Texas Instruments accounted for 38%, 56%, and 47%, of net sales,
respectively. Sales to the top ten customers were 79%, 82%, and 77%, of net sales in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

The Company’s operations by geographic segment for the three years ended July 31, 2007 are summarized
as follows:

Year ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Sales to unaffiliated customers:

United States .............cccviiinvn... P $ 48,830 $ 88,896 $ 41,253
aIWAN . . ittt e e e e e 5,496 10,538 11,815
JaPAN L e e 5,241 2,840 5,978
SINgapOre ... 15,598 45,632 14,765
Philippines . ...... ... i e e 37.584 55,176 38,941
All Other COUNMTIES . . ... it e e et ee e 34,890 13,421 21,779
Total sales to unaffiliated customers .............c.coiiririiiinnnnnnnn. $147,639 $216,503 $134,531
Long-lived assets
LT T B - $ 43881 $ 49,618 §$ 58,157
I R 65 394 670
1 VA 232 54 22
Singapore ... .. .. 1,845 1,545 1,996
All Other COUNtIIES . o .. oo e e e e e 1,222 784 1,052
Total long-lived assets ........... .. ittt innenans $ 47245 $ 52395 § 61,897




LTX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Transfer prices on products sold to foreign subsidiaries are intended to produce profit margins that
correspond to the subsidiary’s sales and support efforts. Sales to customers in North America are 100% within
the United States.

9. COMMITMENTS AND LEGAL MATTERS

The Company has operating lease commitments for certain facilities and equipment that expire at various
dates through 2016. The Company has an option to extend the term for its Norwood, Massachusetts facility lease
for two (2) additional five (5) year periods provided that the Company notifies its landlord at least four hundred
twenty-five (425) days prior to expiration of the original term. Minimum lease payments under noncancelable
leases at July 31, 2007, are as follows:

Total
Real Operating

Year ending July 31, Estate Equipment Leases

{in thousands)

2008 . L e $ 2495 $ 904 $ 3,399
2000 . e e 1,842 218 2,060
2000 . e e e 1,610 100 1,710
71 1 1,422 22 1,444
71 1 5O 1,285 11 1,296
Therealler . . .o e e e 3,782 —_ 3,782
Total minimum lease payments .. .........ourrrrrirrrnecnnnanenreaens 312436 $1,255  $13,691

Total rental expense for fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $3,050,489, $3,299,090, and $9,261,863,
respectively.

The Company is, from time to time, subject to legal proceedings, claims and investigations that arise in the
ordinary course of business. There are no such matters that the Company believes are material with respect to its
business, financial position or results of operations.

10. REORGANIZATION CHARGES AND INVENTORY PROVISIONS

For the quarter ended April 30, 2007, the Company recorded a $4.2 million inventory related provision
related to the Fusion HFi product line. The provision was required as a result of two major factors that
materialized during the quarter. First, the Company’s assessment of the Fusion HFi customers demand for HFi
due to the low demand in the markets they serve and second, the projected impact from customers who have
increased adoption of the X-Series piatform by transferring test capacity from HFi to a lower cost to test X-Series
alternative. The favorable performance/price characteristics of the X-Series testers has enabled customers to
transition certain devices currently being tested on the Fusion HFi platform to the X-Series testers. This is
expected to result in increased available HFi capacity at customers and will likely reduce HFi purchases in the
future.

For the quarter ended July 31, 2006, the Company recorded a reorganization charge of approximately $0.2
million, relating primarily to the relocation of the Company’s corporate headquarters.

For the quarter ended January 31, 2006, the Company recorded a reorganization charge of approximately
$1.9 million, of which $0.6 million consisted of severance and employee benefit costs relating to Europe
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LTX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

workforce reductions, $1.2 million for future lease obligations and $0.3 million of plant closure expenses and
legal costs related to the closure of the Company’s facilities in the United Kingdom. These expenses were
partially offset by a $0.2 million reversal of a previously recorded liability for the remaining lease payments of
the Company’s Westwood, Massachusetts facility. The Company signed an agreement during the quarter ended
January 31, 2006 which reduced the future liability previously recorded in fiscal 2005,

On October 25, 2005, LTX Corporation took actions to reduce its operating expenses, including reducing its
worldwide workforce by approximately 15%, eliminating 77 positions. Of the 77 posttions, 74% were from
engineering, 14% from administration, 7% from manufacturing and 5% were from sales and marketing. The
Company took these actions based on a continuing review of its business plans and operations. The Company has
realized annual savings in operating expenses of approximately $8.0 million as a result of these actions. For the
quarter ended October 31, 2005, the Company recorded a reorganization charge relating to workforce reductions
and the separation agreement with its Chief Executive Officer of $4.2 million, of which $2.3 million consisted of
severance costs relating to a worldwide workforce reduction, which was paid during the fiscal year ended
July 31, 2006, and a $1.9 million charge relating to the separation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.
The separation agreement with the Company’s Chief Executive Officer has a $1.2 million cash component, and a
non-cash component consisting of the acceleration of stock option expense of $0.7 million. For more
information, please refer to the Company’s current reports of Form 8-K filed on October 27, 2005 and
November 4, 2005.

During the quarter ended April 30, 2005, the Company recorded a reorganization charge of $28.6 mililion as
a result of a significant corporate-wide restructuring undertaken to more effectively align the Company’s
resources with its current business strategy. Of the $28.6 million, approximately $4.0 million related to
headcount reduction and approximately $24.6 million related to property and equipment impairment and
facilities consolidation.

The $24.6 million reorganization charge relating to fixed asset impairment and facilities consolidation was
undertaken as a result of an asset impairment review. This review was triggered by the workforce reduction and
business unit reorganization. Of the $24.6 million impairment charge, $18.1 million was related to equipment,
$4.6 million related to future lease obligations on equipment that will no longer be used and $1.9 million related
to facilities consolidation. The equipment disposed of consisted primarily of older technology and leased
equipment with remaining principal payments that the Company cannot dispose of until all lease obligations have
been satisfied.

The Company recorded a reorganization charge in the quarter ended QOctober 31, 2004 of $3.1 million, of
which $1.5 million consisted of severance costs relating to a worldwide workforce reduction and $1.6 million
related to consolidation of the Company’s facilities in the United Kingdom. The $1.6 million reorganization
charge related to the consolidation of the Company’s facilities in the United Kingdom consisted of future lease
obligations net of any rental income. In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company’s major customers reduced
their forecasts for capital equipment purchases, which resulted in a sudden and substantial drop in revenues and
orders for the Company. These conditions continued into the second quarter of fiscal 2005. As a result of the
shorter than expected unfavorable development in business conditions and the completion of the Company’s
transition to its next generation Fusion tester product series, the Company recognized a $47.5 million excess and
obsolete inventory provision, primarily related to Fusion HF, in the quarter ended October 31, 2004.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s restructuring activity and related accrual for the fiscal years
ended 2007, 2006 and 2005 (in millions):

Severance Egquipment Facility Asset
Costs leases leases  impairment  Total
(in millions)

Balance July 31,2004 ... . ............ ... . ......... $— $— $— $ — $ —
Additionstoexpense .......... .. ... . ..., 5.5 4.6 35 18.1 317
Elimination of deferred gain ... .................. — 2.8 — — 2.8
Non-cash utilization . .............. ... ... c.0u. — — — (18.1) (18.1)
Cashpaid ... ... ... . ... . i, (4.8) 0.8) (0.8) —_ (6.4)

Balance July 31,2005 .................... e $0.7 $6.6 $27 5 — $10.0
Additions (reductions) to expense ................ 49 0.1} 1.4 0.1 6.3
Elimination of deferred gain . . . .................. — 0.7 — — 0.7
Non-cash utilization ........................... (0.3) — (0.1 0. (0.5)
Cashpaid ........ ... . .. i (3.2) (1.7 (2.2) — (7.0

Balance July 31,2006 ............................. $21 $4.1 $18 5 — § 80
Additions (reductions) toexpense ................ (0.4) — — —_ (0.4)
Elimination of deferred gain .. ................... — (1.6) —_ _— (1.6)
Non-cash utilization ........... ... ..., (0.4) — 02 -— (0.2)
Cashpaid ......... ... oo, 0.7 (1.7 (1.0) —_ 3.4)

Balance July 31,2007 ................ ... .......... $06 5038 $10 $ — $ 24

11. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)

Year Ended July 31, 2007

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter (1) Quarter (1) Quarter (1) (2) Quarter (1)

{In thousands, except per share data)

NetSalEs ..ottt e e $49,840 $34,671 $33,014 $30,114
Grossprofit .........covvvniii i 25,136 16,042 10,839 14,006
Netincome (loss) ....... ... . ciiienenennn 4,590 (3,079 (7.991) (4,185)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic ... e e, $ 007 $ (0.05) $ (0.13) $ (0.07
Diluted ......... . i $ 007 $ (0.05) $ (0.13) $ (0.oD

(1) Includes stock based compensation of $0.9 million, (30.02 per share), $1.3 million, ($0.02 per share), $0.9
million, ($0.01 per share) and $0.9 million, ($0.01 per share), respectively.
(2) Includes inventory related provisions of $4.2 million.
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Year Ended July 31, 2006

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter (1) (4)  Quarter (2) (4) Quarter (4) Quarter (3) (9
(In thousands, except per share data)

Netsales ...ttt $44,951 $47,803 $56,339 $67.410
Grossprofit .......oooivrii i 18,694 22,257 29,480 35,876
Netincome (loss) .....................cv.... (8,383) (1,446) 8,141 13,929
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic ...... .o e $ (0.14) $ (0.02) $ 013 $ 023

Diluted ................. ... . it $ (0.14) $ (0.02) $ 0.3 5 022

(1) Includes reorganization costs of $4.2 million.

(2) Includes reorganization costs of $1.9 million and an inventory related provision of $0.2 million.

{3) Includes reorganization costs of $0.2 million.

{4) Includes stock based compensation of $0.7 million, ($0.01 per share), $1.2 million, ($0.02 per share), $1.4

million, ($0.02 per share) and $1.3 million, ($0.02 per share), respectively.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 15, 2007, the Company paid the full amount of the $27.2 million Convertible Subordinated
Notes plus accrued interest of $1.9 million that were due on August 15, 2007. The Company utilized existing
operating cash to make the payment. This transaction completes all obligations and payments from the August 8,

2001 private placement of $150.0 million 4.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes.

On September 19, 2007, the Company granted 924,000 service based RSUs from the Company's 2004
Stock Plan to the Company's executive officers (see Form 8-K filed on September 21, 2007), and other key
officers and employees. The annual stock based compensation expense is expected to be approximately $3.6

million amortizable over four years on a straight-line basis.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LTX Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LTX Corporation (the “Company™) as of
July 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss),
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2007. Our audits also
included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opimon.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects,
the consolidated financial position of LTX Corporation at July 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2007, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal year 2007, the Company adopted |
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit |
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—An Amendment of FASB Statement Nos. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)”.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), LTX Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of July 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated October 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
October 12, 2007
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There has been no change of accountants nor any disagreements with accountants on any matter of
accounting principles or practices or financial disclosure required to be reported under this Item.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of July 31,
2007. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information
required 1o be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time period specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s managemeni, including its principal executive and principal
financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes
that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reascnable
assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-
benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of July 31, 2007, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of such date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the
reasonable assurance levels.

Management’s report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) and the independent registered public accounting firm’s related
audit report are included in this Item 9.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting for the Company. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or
15d-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the Company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the Company’s
board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

= Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

*  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and

«  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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The Company's management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of July 31, 2007. In making this assessment, the Company’s management used the criteria set forth
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment, management concluded that, as of July 31, 2007, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on its assessment of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report appears below.
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Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LTX Corporation

We have audited LTX Corporation’s internal! control over financial reporting as of July 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). LTX Corporation’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying management’s annual
report on internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Cur
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

A company’s internal contral over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, LTX Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of July 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of LTX Corporation as of July 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related Consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2007 of LTX Corporation and our report dated
October 12, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
October 12, 2007
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Changes in Internal Controls

There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth fiscal
quarter ended July 31, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None,

PART II1

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Certain information relating to our directors and executive officers, committee information, reports and
charters, executive compensation, security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and retated
stockholder matters, and certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference herein from
our definitive proxy statement in connection with our 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2007 Proxy
Statement™). The 2007 Proxy Statement will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the
fiscal year. For this purpose, the Compensation Committee Report included in the 2007 Proxy Statement is
specifically not incorporated herein.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

Certain information relating to our directors and executive officers, executive compensation, security
ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related stockholder matters, and certain
relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference herein from our 2007 Proxy Statement. For this
purpose, the Compensation Committee Report included in the 2007 Proxy Statement is specifically not
incorporated herein.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Certain information relating to our directors and executive officers, executive compensation, security
ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related stockholder matters, and certain
relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference herein from our 2007 Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Certain information relating to our directors and executive officers, executive compensation, security
ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related stockholder matters, and certain
relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference herein from our 2007 Proxy Statement.

Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Certain information relating to audit fees and other of LTX’s independent registered public accounting firm
is incorporated by reference herein from our 2007 Proxy Statement. For this purpose, the Audit Committee
Report included in the 2007 Proxy Statement is specifically not incorporated herein.




PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(A) 1. Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2007, are
included in Item 8, herein.

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ................... 60
Consolidated Balance Sheets—July 31,2007 and 2006 . ... ... ... ... . ... . ... ... ...l 34
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the years ended July 31, 2007,

2006, and 20005 . L e e et 35
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended July 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 .... 36
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended July 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 ........... 37
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements .. ....... ... ... i, 38

(A) 2. Financial Statement Schedules

Consolidated financial statement Schedule II for the Company is included in Item 15(c). All other schedules
for which provision is made in the applicable security regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission are
not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.

(A) 3. Exhibits

Certain of the exhibits listed hereunder have previously been filed with the Commission as exhibits to the
Company’s Registration Statement No. 2-75470 on Form S-1 filed December 23, 1981, as amended (the 1981
Registration Statement); to the Company’s Registration Statement No. 2-94218 on Form S-1 filed November 8, 1984,
as amended (the 1984 Registration Statement); to the Company’s Registration Statement No. 33-35401 on Form 54
filed June 26, 1990, as amended (the 1990 Registration Statement No. 1); to the Company’s Registration Statement
No. 33-39610 on Form S§-3 filed June 10, 1991, as amended (the 1991 Registration Statement No. 1); to the
Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement No. 33-62125 on Form 5-3 filed September 11, 1995 (the
1995 Registration Statement No. 1); to the Company’s Registration No. 333-106163 on Form 5-8 filed June 16, 2003
{the “2003 5-8"); to the Company’s Registration No. 333-11814 on Form S-8 filed January 9, 2004 (the “2004 S-8™);
to the Company’s Registration Statement No. 333-121379 on Form S-8 filed on December 12, 2004 (the “December
2004 S-87); to the Company’s Form 8A/A filed September 30, 1993 amending the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form 8-A filed November 24, 1982 (the 1993 8A/A); to the Company’s Current Reports on Form §-K filed
May L1, 1989 and April 3, 2002; the Company's Annual Reports on Form 10-K for one of the years ended July 31,
2004, 2003, 2002, 2001, 1998, 1997, 1996, 1995, 1994, 1993, 1992, 1991, 1990, 1989, 1988, 1987, 1986, 1985, 1984
and 1983; or the Company’s Quarterly Reports on 10-Q for one of the quarters ended October 31, 1997, January 31,
1998, April 30, 1998, January 31, October 31, 1999 and January 31, 2000, April 30, 2001, January 31,

2002, January 31, 2003, January 31, 2004, October 31, 2004, April 30, 2005, October 31, 2005, January 31, 2006 and
January 31, 2007 and are hereby incorporated by reference. The location of each document so incorporated by
reference is noted parenthetically.

(A) Listing of Exhibits

3.1 —Articles of Organization, as amended. (Exhibit 3.1 to the 1995 Registration Statement No. 1)

32 —By-laws, as amended. (Exhibit 3(B) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q} for the quarter ended
Qctober 31, 1997)
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4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1+

10.2+
10.3+
10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8+

10.9

10.10+

10.11

10.12

10.13+

10.14+

10.15

—Rights Agreement. (Exhibit I of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 3, 1999),
Amendment to Rights Agreement (Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed February
14, 2003) and Amendment No. 2 to Rights Agreement (Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed January 27, 2004)

—Indenture dated as of August &, 2001 between LTX Corporation and State Street Bank & Trust
Company as Trustee (Exhibit 4(D) to the 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K)

—Registration Rights Agreement dated as of August §, 2001 among LTX Corporation, Morgan
Stanley & Co., Incorporated, Deutsche Banc Alex Brown and Needham & Company, Inc,
(Exhibit 4(E) to the 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K)

—1990 Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10{B) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended January 31, 1998)

—2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Exhibit 10(D) to the 2004 $-8)
—1683 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (Exhibit 10(E) to the 1983 Annual Report on Form 10-K)

—LTX Corporation 401(k) Adoption Agreement, Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement
(Exhibit 10(F) to the 2002 Annual Report of Form 10-K)

——Lease dated as of February 27, 1985 relating to land and building at McCandless Park, San Jose,
California. (Exhibit 10(K) to the 1985 Annual Repori on Form 10-K) and Seventh Amendment to
Lease dated September 25, 2002

—Lease dated as of Novermnber 26, 1980 relating to Company’s facility at 50 Rosemont Road,
Westwood, Massachusetts, and Amendment dated as of April 29, 1982, and Third Amendment and
Restatement of Lease dated April 29, 1982. (Exhibit 10(M) to the 1993 Annual Report on
Form 10-K)} and Fourth Amendment to Lease dated as of September 1, 1999 (Exhibit 10(M)(1) to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended January 31, 2000)

—Termination Agreement dated as of December 20, 2001 relating to Company’s facility at
5 Rosemont Avenue, Westwood, Massachusetts (Exhibit 10(M)(ii) to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2002)

—Summary of Executive Bonus Plan (Exhibit 10.8 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended January 31, 2006)

—Loan and Security Agreement dated as of December 7, 2006 between LTX Corporation and
Silicon Valley Bank (Exhibit 10.9 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
January 31, 2007)

-—Form of Change of Control Agreement entered into with certain executive officers (Exhibit tO(Y)
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 1998)

—1999 Stock Plan (Exhibit 10(CC) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 31, 1999)

—redit Agreement dated as of April 30, 2001 between LTX Corporation and Citizens Bank of
Massachusetts (Exhibit 10(EE) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 30, 2001) and Amendment 5 to Credit Agreement

—2001 Stock Plan (Exhibit 10(FF) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
January 31, 2003)

—Deferred Compensation Plan effective as of December 1, 2001 (Exhibit 10(GG) to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended January 31, 2002)

—STI 2000 Stock Option Plan (Exhibit 4 to the 2003 S-8)
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10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19

10.20

10.21

16.1

21
23.1
31.1
31.2
32

—2004 Stock Plan (Exhibit 10,15+ to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 31, 2004)

—Form of Nonstatutory Stock Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10.16 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2004)

—Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for Employees (Exhibit 10,17 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2004)

—Amendment 7 to Credit Agreement dated as of April 30, 2001 between LTX Corporation and
Citizens Bank of Massachusetts (Exhibit 10.19 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended October 31, 2005)

—Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (performance vested) (Exhibit 10.20 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2006)

~—Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (time vested) (Exhibit 10.21 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2006)

—Letter dated April 3, 2002 from Arthur Andersen LLP (Exhibit 16 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed April 3, 2002)

—Subsidiaries of Registrant

—Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

—Rule 13a-14(a} Certification of David G. Tacelli, CEO
—Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Mark J. Gallenberger, CFO
—Section 1350 Certification of CEQ and CFO

+ This exhibit is a compensatory plan or arrangement in which executive officers or directors of the Company
participate.

Pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation S-K, certain instruments with respect to long-term debt not exceeding
10% of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis are not filed herewith. The
Company hereby agrees to furnish to the Commission a copy of each such instrument upon request.

Item 15(b). Exhibits
Exhibit 21—Subsidiaries of Registrant

Company

LTX (Burope) Limited . ... ... .. i it United Kingdom 100%
LTX International Inc., Domestic International Sales Corporation (DISC} ........... Delaware 100%
LTX (Deutschland) GmBH .. .. . .. .. .. e Germany 100%
LT X France S A. .. i e e France 100%
LTX Test Systems COTPOration . ......... ... oottt iiieiinnineiniiaaans Delaware 100%
| 0 1 T+ 78 SO Italy 100%
LTX (Foreign Sales Corporation) B.V. ... ... . ... ... . .. ... . i The Netherlands  100%
LTX Asia International, InC. . ... ... .. i e e Delaware 100%
ETX Israel Limited . ... ..o e e e e e e e Israel 100%
LTX (Malaysia) SDN.BHD ... .. .. ... e Malaysia 100%
LT X L it e e i e e e e e Delaware 100%
LTX (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ... ..o e e e e China 100%

The subsidiaries listed are all included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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Item 15(c)

SCHEDULE II

LTX CORPORATION

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For Years Ended July 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(im thousands)

Description

Reserve for sales returns, allowances and doubtful accounts
July 31,2007 ...
July 31,2000 .. .. ... e
July 31,2005 ... ...
Reserve for other accounts receivable
July 31,2007 .. .. . e
July 31,2000 .. ..o e e
July 31,2005 ...
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory (2)
July 31,2007 .. ..o i
July 31,2006 .. ...
July 31,2005 . ..o e

(1} Represents amounts written off or utilization of reserve.
(2) Amounts charged to expense include inventory provisions related to product transitions and adverse

Balance at Balance
beginning Charged at end
of period  to expense Deductions (1) of period
$ 1,303 § 0 $ (53) $ 1,250
$ 1648 § 0 $ (345 §$ 1,303
$1672 % 0 $ (24) $ 1,906
5 88 $ 280 $ (78 $ 290
$ 258 $ 0 $ (1700 $ 88
$ 344 § 0 $ (86) § 258
$46,472 §$ 4,874 $ (9,935 341417
$99644 § 1,684 $(54,856) $46,472
$78,875 $47,920 $(27.151) $99,644

business conditions of $4.2 million, $0.2 million and $47.5 million for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Also included in amounts charged to expense and recorded in cost of sales are inventory
reserves established relating to product deemed defective or unusable during the normal manufacturing
process of $0.7 million, $1.5 million and $0.4 million for the fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

LTX CORPORATION

By: /s/ DaviD G. TACELLI

David G. Teacelli
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 15, 2007
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

/s/ ROGER W. BLETHEN " Chairman of the Board October 11, 2007
Roger W. Blethen

/s/ Davip G, TACELLI President and Chief Executive October 15, 2007
David G. Tacelli Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ MARK ). GALLENBERGER Vice President, Chief Financial October 15, 2007 .
Mark J. Gallenberger Officer and Treasurer (Principal

Financial Officer)

/s/  DANIEL V. WALLACE Controller, (Principal Accounting October 15, 2007
Daniel V, Wallace Officer)
/8/ MARK S. AIN Director October 15, 2007
Mark S. Ain
/s/ STEPHEN M, JENNINGS Director October 15, 2007

Stephen M. Jennings

/s!/ ROGER J. MAGGS Director ‘ October 11, 2007
Roger J. Maggs '
fs/ ROBERT E. MOORE Director October 15, 2007
Robert E. Moore
/s/  SAMUEL RUBINOVITZ Director October 15, 2007
Samuel Rubinovitz
/s/  PATRICK J. SPRATT Director October 15, 2007

Patrick J. Spratt
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Exhibit 21
Subsidiaries of Registrant

Company

LTX (Burope) Limited ... ..o e United Kingdom 100%
LTX International Inc., Domestic International Sales Corporation (DISC) ........... Delaware 100%
LTX (Deutschland) GmBH ............ e e Germany 100%
LT France S A, ittt it et ettt et e France 100%
LTX Test Systems Corporation . ............... U Delaware 100%
By Q1721 1) J 0 A A P R Italy 100%
LTX (Foreign Sales Corporation) B.V. ... i The Netherlands  100%
LTX Asia International, INC. ... .. i ic et ine s iie e Delaware 100%
LTX Istael LImited . - .. oottt o e it ieee i es it e e a e Israel 100%
LTX (Malaysia) SDN.BHD ... ... ..o e Malaysia 100%
LTXLLC .. ...l P e e e e s Delaware 100%
LTX (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ............ e e e China’ 100%

The subsidiaries listed are all included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company.




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Staternents on Form S-§ (File No. 2-77475, File
No. 2-90698, File No. 33-7018, File No. 33-14179, File No. 33-32140, File No. 33-32141, File No. 33-33614, File
No. 33-38674, File No. 33-38675, File No. 33-51683, File No. 33-51685, File No. 33-57457, File No. 33-57459, File
No. 33-65245, File No. 33-65247, File No. 333- 48363, File No. 333-48341, File No. 333-71455, File No. 333-30972,
File No. 333-54230, File No. 333-75734, File No. 333-102051, File No. 333-106163, File No. 333-111814 and File
No. 333-121379) pertaining to the STI 2000 Stock Option Plan, 2001 Stock Plan, 1999 Stock Plan, 1993 Employees’
Stock Purchase Plan, 1995 LTX (Europe) Ltd. Approved Stock Option Plan, 1990 Stock Option Plan, 1990 Incentive
Stock Option Plan, 1990 Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan, 1983 Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan, 1983
Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, 1981 Incentive Stock Qption Plan, 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and 2004
Stock Plan of LTX Corporation of our reports dated October 12, 2007, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements and schedule of LTX Corporation and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of LTX
Corporation included in the Annual Repont (Form 10-K) for the year ended July 31, 2007.

/sf Ernst & Young LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
Qctober 12, 2007




Exhibit 31.1

Rule 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, David G. Tacelli, certify that:

1.
2.

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LTX Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does niot contain any untrue staternent of a material fact or omit to state

a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control

over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

¢}

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusion about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a

significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

fs/ DaviD G. TACELLI

David G. Tacelli
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: October 15, 2007




Exhibit 31.2
Rule 13a-14{a) CERTIFICATION

I, Mark J. Gallenberger, certify that:
. I'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of LTX Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, {0 ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusion about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting,

fs/ MARK J. GALLENBERGER

Mark J. Gallenberger
Yice President and
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Dated: October 15, 2007




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, each of the undersigned certifies that this annual repert on Form 10-K for the
period ended July 31, 2007 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects,
the financial condition and results of operations of LTX Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

/s/ DavID G. TACELLI

David G. Tacelli
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: October 15, 2007

fst MaRK J. GALLENBERGER

Mark J. Gallenberger
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Dated: October 15, 2007




Shareholder Return on Common Stock

The graph below matches LTX Corporation's cumulative S-year total shareholder return on common
stock with the cumulative total returns of the S&P 500 index, the NASDAQ Composite index, the S&P
Information Technology index, and the RDG Semiconductor Composite index. The company no longer
believes that the S&P 500 and the S&P Information Technology Index adequately represents them and
henceforth will be using the NASDAQ Composite and RDG Semiconductor Composite going forward.
The graph tracks the performance of a $100 investment in our common stock and in each index (with the
reinvestment of all dividends) from 7/31/2002 to 7/31/2007.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among LTX Corporation . . .

$250 -
$200 -
/‘.““
-".'-‘“
s150 T .‘._,.|u---|--..“-"'_:'.....-u-n-.-::‘ '.-.
$100 A
$50 -
‘ i L 1 1 —
7/02 7/03 7104 7/05 7/06 7107
= LTX Corporation *===*S&P 500
== NASDAQ Composite ====+: &P Information Technology

== RDG Semiconductor Composite

* $100 invested on 7/31/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending July 31.

Copyright © 2007, Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.
www . researchdatagroup.com/S&P bim

7/02 7/03 7/04 7/05 7/06 7107
LTX Corporation 100.00 100.92 81.98 67.31 54.89 46.74
S&P 500 100.00 110.64 125.22 142.81 150.50 174.78
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 128.66 142.78 164.72 161.10 197.04
S&P Information Technology 100.00 123.77 135.99 150.23 137.68 179.34
RDG Semiconductor Composite 100.00 125.23 124.40 144.27 123.56 155.711

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.







Corporate Profile

LTX Corporation designs, manufactures, markets and services semiconductor test solutions for semiconductor designers and manufacturers
worldwide, such as ASE, austriamicrosystems, Infineon Technologies, Maxim Integrated Products, Renesas, STMicroelectronics and Texas
Instruments. Qur corporate headguarters are located in Nonwood, Massachusetts. We alsa have development facilities in Milpitas, California
as well as sales and service facilities throughout North America, Europe, and the Pacific Rim. LTX is traded on the Nasdag Global Market

under the symbol “LTXX.”

Board of Directors

Roger W. Blethen
Chairman of the Board
LTX Corporation

David G. Tacelli

Chief Executive Officer
and President

LTX Corporation

Mark S. Ain

Founder and Executive
Chairman

Kronos Incorporated

Stephen M. Jennings
Chief Executive Qfficer
Manitor Cormpany

Roger J. Maggs
Partner
Celtic House Investment

Robert E. Moore
Retired President and
Chairman of the Board

Reliable Power Meters, Inc.

Samuel Rubinovitz
Retired Executive
Vice Prasident
EG&G, Inc.

Patrick J. Spratt
Chief Financial Officer
KVH Industries, Inc,

Officers

David G. Tacelli
Chief Executive Officer
and President

Mark J. Gallenberger
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Richard L. Bove
Vice President

Joseph A. Heda!
Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary

Bruce R. MacDonald
Vice President

Peter S. Rood
Vice President

Daniel V. Wallace
Vice Prasident
and Corporate Controller

Thomas J. Young
Vice President

Fellows
Solomon M. Max

Warren R. Necoechea
Philip E. Perkins

Legal Counsel

Wilmer Cutler Pickering

Hale and Dorr LLP

Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP
Boston, Massachusetts 02110

Transfer Agent

Computershare
Canton, MA 02021

Stock

"LTXX," traded on the
NASDAQ National Market

Investor Relations

Mark J. Gallenberger

Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer
781.467.5417
mark_gallenberger@Itx.com

In this report LTX makes, and may from time to time elsewhere make, disclosures which contain forward-locking statements within the meaning

of the Private Secuntes Litigation Reform Act of 1895. Such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties including, but not imited to,

the Busingss Risks discussed in the Form 10-K included in this annual repart that could cause actual results to differ matenally from those in the

forward-looking staternents.
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